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ST ANDREW'S LIFE ASSURANCE PLC (3104670) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Principal activity and review of business

The Directors present the financial statements of St Andrew's Life Assurance Plc (“the Company™) The Company 15 a hmited
lhability company domiciled 1n the United Kingdom

The principal activity of the Company 15 the undertaking of ordinary long-term insurance and savings business and associated
mvestment activities 1n the United Kingdom The Company offers a wide range of life msurance products such as whole life, term
life and investment type products through the Lloyds Banking Group network The Company also reinsures business with other
Lloyds Bankmg Group companies and with insurance entities external to the Company

Results and dividend

The result of the Company for the vear ended 31 December 2009 1s a loss after tax of £109 7m (2008 profit after tax of £340 Im)
and thus has been transferred to reserves

No dividends were paid during the vear (2008 nil)

Key performance indicators

Total insurance premiums recerved from policyholders were £1,959 6m (2008 £2,281 Im) All of these premiums were recognised
1n the statement of comprehensive income with no premiums being subject to deposit accounting

Funds under management are approximately £12 6bn (2008 £10 6bn)

The Directors believe that the Company currently has adequate capital resources and will continue to do so in the foreseeable future
Further information on the capital position of the Company 1s given 1n note 26

The Dhrectors consider that the above key performance indicators are appropriate to the pnncipal activity of the Company In
addition, the Directors are of the opimion that the Financial Services Authonty’s { FSA ) returns capital resource requirement and
regular actuarial reports, n conjunction with the information presented in the financial statements as a whole, provide the
management information necessary for the Directors to understand the development, performance and position of the business of the
Company

The Company also forms part of the Insurance Diviston of Lloyds Banking Group plc  The development, performance and position
of this Division are discussed 1n the Group’s annual report, which does not form part of this report

Future outlook
The Directors consider that the Company’s activities will continue unchanged 1n the foreseeable future

Primcipal risks and uncertaimties

The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy are subject to a number of nisks The financial nisk
management objectives and policies of the Company and the exposure to market, imsurance, credit and financial soundness risk are
set out 1n note 26

In addinion, the Company 1s also exposed to financial and prudential regulatory reporting nisk, 1n particular the risk of reputaticnal
damage, loss of mvestor confidence and/or financial loss ansing from the adoption of inappropnate accounting pohicies, meffective
controls over financial reporting or over prudential regulatory reporting and financial reporting fraud The finaneal and nisk
management objectives and policies of the Company n respect of financial and regulatory nisk are also set outin note 26

The company, hke other insurers, is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business Whilst 1t 15 not practicable to
forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal procecdings, management does not beheve that such
proceedings, mcluding iigation, will have a matenal effect on the results and financial position of the Company
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Directors

The names of the current Directors are histed on page 3 Changes in directorships during the year (and since the end of the year) are
as follows

A G Kane (appointed 4 March 2009)

J Van Der Wielen (appointed 4 March 2009)

J Dawson {resigned 26 March 2009)

S Colsell (resigned 26 March 2009)

R Devey {resigned 26 March 2009}

P Gale {resigned 31 December 2009)
B Duffin {resigned 18 March 2010}

P D Loney (appotnted 25 March 2010)

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments are set out 1n note 27

One of the Directors has entered o an individual contract of indemnity with Lloyds Banking Group plc which constitutes a
“quahfying third party indemnity provision” and a “gualifying pension scheme indemnity provision” for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006 This contract was in force during the whole of the financial year The contract remains in force and 1s
available for inspection at the registered office of Lloyds Banking Group ple, details of which are given in note 27

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each Director confirms that as far as they are aware there 1s no relevant audil information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware Relevant informaucn 1s defined as “information needed by the Company’s auditors i connection with preparing their
report”

Each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken in s duty as a Director in order 1o make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Compames Act 2006
Change of auditors

Following the resignation of KPMG on 30 Apnil 2009, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as auditors of the Company
with effect from the same date by resolution of the members dated 22 June 2009

Pursuant to section 487 of the Compames Act 2006, auditors duly appointed by the members of the Company shall, subject to any
resolution to the contrary, be deemed to be reappointed for the next financial year and PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore
continue 1n office

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company follows “The Better Payment Practice Code™ published by the Department for Business [nnovation and Skills (“BIS"),
regarding the making of payments to suppliers A copy of the code and information about it may be obtained from the BIS, Nol
Victona Street, London, SWI1H QET

The Company’s policy 1s to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days after the
date of the 1nvoice, except where other arrangements have been negotiated It 15 the policy of the Company to abide by agreed terms
of payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of contract

The processing of inveices from suppliers and settlement of trade creditors 1s undertaken by a separate company within the Lloyds
Banking Group The number of days shown 1 this report, to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, 1s 20 days
(2008 19 days)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

S Mayer

Edinburgh
25 March 2010




ST ANDREW'S LIFE ASSURANCE PLC (3104670) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Durectors are responstble for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected
1o prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as adopted by the
European Union  Under company law the Directors must not approve the financia! statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penied In prepanng these
financial statements, the Directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

»  state whether apphcable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements,

e  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s 1nappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frand and other irregulanties




ST ANDREW'S LIFE ASSURANCE PLC FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF ST ANDREWS LIFE ASSURANCE PLC

We have audited the Company financial statements of St Andrews Life Assurance plc for the year ended 31 December 2009 which
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 15 applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 6, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being sanisfied that they give a true and fair view  Qur responsibility 35 to audit the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s member as a body 1n accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Compamies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 15 shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

s piveatrue and farr view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of 1ts loss and cash flows for the year
then ended.

=  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unton, and

+  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matier prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the followsng matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or
the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certamn disclosures of Directors” remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all of the information and expiananions we require for our audst

Clare Thompson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

25 March 2010
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

2009 2008
(Restated)
Note £m £m
Revenue
Gross premiums earned 1,9596 22811
Premiums ceded o remnsurers {8 ) 206
Premiums earned net of reinsurance 1,951 2 23017
Fee and commisston income 3 25 81
Investment income 4 441 7 5123
Net realised losses on assets and habilities at fair value though mcome 5 (101 1) (231 2)
Net fair value gains/(fosses) on assets and liabilities at fair value through income 6 12655 (1,969 0)
Total revenue 3,559 8 6219
Expenses
Gross clamms and benefits 1,3796 20787
Claims recoveries from rewnsurers (23 5) (724)
1,356 1 2,006 3
Change n insurance contract liabalhities 1,969 4 (1,273 7)
Change 1n investment contract liabihities 03 (5297
Change in reinsurers’ share of habilities 21 158 7
19718 (1644 7)
Operating expenses 7 164 4 1953
Expenses for asset management services received 345 388
Finance costs 9 26 438
2015 2389
Total expenses 3,529 4 600 5
Profit before tax 304 214
Taxation (charge)/credut 10 (140 1) 3187
{Loss)/profit for the year (1097 3401
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences, net of tax @n -
Other comprehensive income [(LR] -
Total comprehensive income (109 8) 340.1

The notes set out on pages 12 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements

The 2008 comparatives have been restated as explained 1n note 31
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
2009 2008 1 Jan 2008
(Restated) {Restated)
Note £m £m £m
ASSETS
Deferred costs 11 274 8 2759 2842
Deferred tax assets 12 2657 4358 1223
Investment properties 13 881 106 1 1295
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract Liabiliies 19 98 0 1001 2588
Current tax receivable 12 16 6 190 -
Financial asscts
Dernvative financial instruments 14 173 1 198 8 68 8
Loans and receivables 15 429 856 1508
Investments at fair value through income 16 13,083 2 10,953 7 14,402 1
Cash and cash equivalents 17 572 1051 858
Total assets 14,099 6 12,280 1 15,502 3
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company’s equuty shareholder
Share capital 18 3600 3600 3600
Retained earnings 469 1 5789 238 8
Total equity 8291 938 9 598 8
Liabihities
Insurance contract habilities 19 12,690 7 10,7213 11,965 0
Deferred tax habibities 12 156 5 204 1 218 5
Current tax payables 12 313 244 197
Provisions for other iabilittes and charges 20 21 - -
Accruals and deferred income 21 - 41 46
Financial hiabilities
Investment contract liabilities 22 87 99 2447 6
Derivative financial instruments 14 201 587 38
Other habihties 23 3611 3187 2143
Total habilities 13,2705 11,3412 14,903 5
Total habilhities and equity 14,099 6 12,2801 15,502 3

The notes set out on pages 12 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements

The 2008 comparatives have been reslated as explamed in note 31

Approved by the Board on 25 March 2010

T A Leonard
Dhrector
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
2009 2008
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 304 214
Adjusted for
Movement in Deferred Costs 11 11 83
Finance costs 26 48
Net (increase)/decrease 1n operating assets and habilities 24 (710) 131
Taxation paid GI))] (235}
Other Comprehensive Income 0N -
Net cash flows from operating activities {45 3) 241
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid 9 {2 6) (4 8)
Net cash flows from financing activities {2 6) {4 8)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (47 9) 193
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1051 858
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 572 105 1

The notes set out on pages 12 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements

10
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Issued share Retained earnings Total
capital £m £m
£m

Balance as at 1 January 2008 3600 2388 5088
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3401 340 1
Balance as at 31 December 2008 3600 5789 9389
Total comprehensive income for the year - (109 8) {109 8)
Balance as at 31 December 2009 3600 469 1 829 |

Not all of the above amounts can be distributed to the equity shareholder since the Company 1s required to meet regulatory capital requireme
Further details are given 1n note 26

The notes set out on pages 12 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements

11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

1

Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies

The Company has identified the accounting pohcies that are most sigrificant to 1its business operations and the understanding
of 1ts results

The financial statements comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, the
statement of changes 1n equity and the related notes The preparation of the financial statements necessitates the use of
estimates and assumptions m applying the accounting policies set out on pages 12 to 21 The accounting policies which relate
1o nsurance contracts {(pohicy p), the ascertainment of fair values of financial assets and financial habilities (policy c) and the
determination of impairment losses (policy m) are those which nvolve the most complex or subjective decisions or
assessments These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities, contingent or otherwise, at
the reporting date, as well as affecting the reported itncome and expenses for the year

In each case, the determination of these is fundamental to the financial results and position of the Company, and requires
management to make complex judgments based on information and financial data that may change i future periods
Although the estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current facts as at the reporting date, the actual
ouicome may differ from those estimates

The significant accounting policies adopted 1n the preparation of the financial statements, which have been consistently
applied to all peniods presented 1n these financial statements, are set out below

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Companry have been prepared

(1} n accordance with the International Accounting Standards ( "1ASs™) and International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs™) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Standards and Interpretations (“SICs } and
International Fimancial Reporting Interpretations (‘IFRICs } issued by its International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commitice, as endorsed by the European Unmion

(2} 1n accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRSs,

(3} under the historical cost convention, as modificd by the revaluation of investment properties and certain financial assets
and financial habilities at fair value through income, as set out i the relevant accounting policies

The Diarectors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue n business for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis

In accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, assets and habihities in the balance sheet are presented in
accordance with management’s estimated order of hiquidity  Analysis of the assets and hLabilittes of the Company into
amounts expected to be recerved or settled within 12 moenths afier the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after
the reporting date (non-current} 1s presented in the notes

Standards and interpretations effective 1n 2009

A number of standards, amendments to and nterpretations of published standards which have the potential to impact on the
Company’s operations have been 1ssued and are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Therr relevance to the Company’s operations 1s assessed at note 29

Details of standards and interpretations 1n issue but which have not been adopted early are set out at note 30

12
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

1. Accounting pelicies (continued)

(b) Product classification

The Company issues contracts that transfer ynsurance nsk or financial risk or both
Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts which transfer sigmificant insurance nisk  Such contracts may also transfer financial
risk As a general guideline, the Company defines as significant insurance nisk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the
occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the insured event were not to occur
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remamnder of 1ts lifetime,
even If the insurance nisk reduces significantly over time

Investment contracts

Any long term contracts not considered to be mnsurance contracts under IFRS because they do not transfer significant
msurance risk are classified as investment contracts The Company does not have any investment contracts with a
discretionary participation feature (“DPF”) Investment contracts without DPF are contracts that neither transfer significant
insurance risk nor contain a DPF

(¢) Financial assets and financial habilifes

Management determines the classification of its financial assets and financial habilities at imtial recognition and re-evaluates
this at every reporung date Management’s policies for the recognition of specific financial assets and financial habilities, as
identified on the balance sheet, are set out under the relevant accounting policies

Financial assets are derecogmised when the rights to receive cashflows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership  Financial liabilities are derecognised only
when the obligation specified in the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

All financial assets and financial liabihittes are designated at fair value through income, with the exception of certain loans
and recervables (policy (1)), other financial hrabihties {policy (t)} which are stated at amortised cost, and denvatives, as
described further in policy (1) The class:fication depends on the purpose for which the financial assets and financial
l:abilities were acquired Certan financial assets and financial habiliues, whose default accounting treatment would be to
record these balances at amortised cost, are instead designated at fair value through income as they are held to match
msurance and investment contract liabihities linked to the changes in fair value of these assets and habilities, thereby reducing
measurement nconsistencies, and the fact that these are managed and their performance evaluated on a far value basis
Information on these balances 1s provided internally on a far value basis to the Company’s key management The
Company’s nvestment strategy 15 to invest 1n equity and debt secunities 1nvestment property and cash and to evaluate the
Company’s investments with reference to theur fair values

Fair value methodology

The Company has adopted the amended IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments Disclosures” from 1 January 2009

Further information on the impact on the Company of the adoption of this amendment is set out in note 29

All financial instruments carmed at fair value are categorised into a  fair value hierarchy  as follows

(1) Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) 1in acive markets for identical assets and habilities 1o those being valued An active market 15 one
mn which arm’s length transactions in the mstrument occur with both sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing

information on an ongomng basis Examples include histed equities, hsted debt secunties, quoted unit trusts traded 1n active
markets and exchange traded denvatives such as futures.

13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

(m) Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices)
or indirectly {denved from prices) If the asset or hability has a specified (contractual) term, a Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or hability Level 2 inputs include the following

¢ Quoted prices for similar (but not tdentical) instruments 1n active markets,
Quoted pnices for 1dentical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, where prices are not current, or
price quotations vary substantially either over tune or among marketmakers,

¢ Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the instrument (for example, interest rates and yield curves
observable at commonly quoted intervals and default rates),

+  Inputs that are derrved principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means

Examples of these are securities measured using discounted cash flow models based on market observable swap yields,
investment property measured using market observable ;nformation, and listed debt or equity secunues in a market that 1s
mactive

{m) Level 3

Inputs for the asset ot liability are not based on observable market data (unobservable snputs) Unobservable inputs may
have been used to measure fair value where observable inputs are not available This approach allows for sitwations in which
there 15 little, of any, market activity for the asset or hiability at the measurement date {(or market infoermation for the inputs to
any valuatien models) Unobservable inputs reflect the assumptions the Company considers that market particrpants would
use 1n pricing the asset or liability, for example certam private equity mvestments held by the Company

Where estimates are used, these are based on a combination of independent third-party evidence and internally developed
models, calibrated to market observable data where possible  Whilst such valuations are sensitive to estimates, 1t 1s believed
that changing one or more of the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not change the fair value
significantly

Further analysis of the Company’s instruments held at fair value 1s set out at note 16

The Company’s management, through a pricing and disclosure committee, review mnformanton on the fair value of the
Company’s financial assets and financtal liabilities and the sensitivities to these values on a regular basis

No assets are classified as held-to-matunity or avatlable-for-sale Denvatve assets are classified as held for trading  With the
exception of derivative habilines, no habilities are classified as held for trading  Further information on derivatives 1s set out
at policy (1)

Transaction costs mcidental to the acquisiion of a financial asset are expensed through the statement of comprehensive
income, within net reahsed gains and losses on assets and liabihties at fair value through income

Financial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there 15 a
legally enforceable night to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and scttle the hiabihty simultaneously

(d) Revenue recogmtion

Premium thcome

Premiums received in respect of life imsurance contracts are recogmised as revenue when they become payable by the
policyholder and are shown before deduction of commission  Premiums ceded to reinsurers are recognised when the related
gross premiums are recogmsed  Gross and ceded premiums are recorded through the relevant hnes 1n the statement of
comprehensive income

Fee and commigsion income

The Company receives investment management fees in the form of an imitial adjustment, or charge, to the amount 1nvested
These fees are 1n respect of services rendered in conjunction with the 1ssue and management of 1nvestment contracts where
the Company actively manages the consideration received from its customers to fund a return that 15 based on the investment
profile that the customer selected on origination of the contract These services compnse an indeterminate number of acts
over the hves of the individual contracts and, therefore, the Company defers these fees and recognises them on a straight-line

14
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

basis over the estimated lives of the contracts unless there 15 evidence to support an alternative recognition basis  The
income 15 recognised through the statement of comprehensive income, within fee and commussion income The liability 1s
recognised 1n the balance sheet within accruats and deferred income until recognition criteria are met

Investment income

Interest income for ail interest-bearing financial instruments 1s recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as 1t
accrues within investment income

Dividends recervable in respect of histed shares or Open Ended Investment Company (“OEIC™) distributions are recognised
on the date that these are quoted ex-dividend, other dividend income 15 recogmsed when received  All dividends received are
recognised through the statement of comprehensive income, within investment income

Rental income 1n respect of nvestment properties 1s recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income, within investment
income, when the night to receive payment 1s estabhished

(¢) Expense recognition
Claims
Claims are recorded as an expense on the earlier of the maturity date or the date on which the claim 1s notified Claims

recoveries from remsurers are recognised when the related claims are recogmsed Claims and claims recovenies are
recognised through the relevant lines 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Operating expenses

Commusston pard n respect of the business wnitten by the Company 15 recogmsed through the statement of comprehensive
income, within operating expenses  Where certain cntenia are met, commission and other acquisition costs may be deferred
The circumstances under which such costs are deferred are set out at policy (f)

Other operating expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred, within operating expenses

Expenses for assel management services received

Expenses for asset management services received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as they accrue,
within expenses for asset management services recewved

Finance costs
Interest expense for all mterest-bearing financial instruments 15 recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as it

accrues, within finance costs  Fiance costs also include interest paid on the late payment of claims This 1s recognised when
mcurred

Dividends payable
Dividends payable on ordinary shares are recogmsed 1 equity in the penod in which they are approved

(N Deferred costs

Deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquining new 1nsurance contracts which are incurred during a financial period but which relate to subsequent
financia! periods are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins  The deferred acquisition
cost asset 15 amorused over the hifetime of the related contracts based on the pattem of margins arising from these contracts
At each reporting date the asset 1s reviewed and 1s impaired where it 15 no longer expected to be recoverable out of future
margins on the related insurance contracts The change in the value of deferred acquisition costs for the year 15 recognised
through the statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses

15
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 {(Continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties, which are held either 1o earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both are imuially measured at
fair value This represents the far value of the consideration given, including directly attnibutable transaction costs
Subsequently, on a quarterly basis and at each reporting date, such properues are carned at fair value as assessed by qualified
external appratsers Fair value 15 based on active market prices, adjusted 1f necessary for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset If this information 1s not available, alternative valuaton metheds such as discounted cash
flow analysis or recent prices in less active markets are used Investment property bemng redeveloped for continuing use as
mvestment property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair value

Gains or losses arnsing from changes in the fair values of investment properties are recogmsed 1 the statement of
comprehensive income 1n the period 1 which they anise, within net gains and losses on assets and liabilities at fair value
through income

(b} Remnsurance assets

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business Remnsurance assets, which are measured on a basis
consistent with the related insurance contract habilsties, include balances due from both insurance and reinsurance companmes
for ceded insurance habilites Premiums ceded and claims rermbursed are disclosed separately on the face of the statement
of comprehensive income  The benefits to which the Company 15 entitled under 11s remnsurance contracts held are recognised
as remnsurance assets These assets consist of sheri-term balances due from reinsurers {recogmsed within loans and
recervables), as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims benefits arismg under the related
remsured insurance contracts (recognised within reinsurers’ share of insurance contract abilities)

The change in reinsurers’ share of habslities on the face of the statement of comprehensive income represents the movement
during the year in all amounts recoverable from reinsurers (including those recogmsed within other loans and receivables,
since these amounts are recoverable from third parties under contracts of reinsurance)

(1) Derwative financial mstruments

Classification

Denvative financial instruments are held for trading Denvatives held for trading are used for the purposes of efficient
portfoho management or to match contractual habihities

Recognition

Denvatives are mtially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract 15 entered nto and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value

Measurement

The best evidence of the fair value of a denvative at imitial recognition 1s the transaction price unless the fair value of that
mstrument 15 evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument

Farr values are obtamed from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions For over-the-
counter (‘OTC" } denivatives, the fund manager valuation ts used

Data from a primary source will imitially be used in valuing denivauves However, tolerance checks are also performed
between valuations denved from different sources in order to validate the calculated valuations, detect any potential
discrepancies and, if appropnate, select a secondary or tertiary price for use in the valuation instead  If, as a result of this
process, a value other than one obtained from a pnmary valuation source were 10 be used to value a denvatve, this would be
approved by the Derivatives and Counterparty Risk Committee

For exchange traded contracts, the value 1s based on the quoted bid price at close of business

Changes 1n the fair value of denivatives are recognmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income, through net fair value
gains and losses on assets at fair value through income
All denivatives are presented as assets when their fair value 1s positive and as habiiities when therr fair value 1s negatve

() Loans and receivables

Loans and recervables are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Loans and receivables are imtially recogmised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, subject to impairment, with the exception of accrued nterest, rent receivable and amounts
recoverable from rensurers which do not meet the defimtion of remsurance contracts (as set out it pohey (h)), which are
accounted for at fair value, reflecting the amounts receivable at the year end In practice, the carrying value of these balances
equates to the fair value due to the short-term nature of the amounts included within loans and receivables

A charge for impairment in respect of loans and receivables would be made 1n the statement of comprehensive income when
there 1s objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to their onginal terms
The impairment charge would be recogrised 1n that part of the statement of comprehensive income 1n which the conginal
transaction was reported Recervables anising from insurance contracts are also classified in this category and are reviewed
for impairment as part of the impairment review of loans and receivables  Such amounts are reflected through the statement
of comprehensive income within gross premiums written and claims recoveries from rensurers  Further infermation on the
Company’s impairment policy 1s set out at policy (m)

(k) Investments at fair value through income

Investments at fair value through inceme compnse debt and equity securities

Classification

A financial asset 1s classified in this category at inception 1f acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term,
if it forms part of a portfohio of financial assets 1n whuch there 1s evidence of shortterm profit-taking, or if designated as such

Recognttion

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmsed on the trade date, 1 ¢ the date the Company comrmuts to purchase the
asset from, or deliver the asset to, the counterparty Investments are 1mhally recognised at fair value through wcome, being
the far value of the consideration given, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value

Measurement

Quoted Investments

The far values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices  If the market for a financial asset 1s not active, and
also for unlisted secunties, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techmiques  These nclude the use of
arm’s length transactions and reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, making maximum use of market
mputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs  The following paragraphs detail the valuation techniques
specific to equity, Open Ended Investment Companies (“OEIC”s) and debt securities

For equity mvestments that are quoted and actively traded 1n orgamsed financial markets, fair value 1s determmed by
reference to Stock Exchange quoted market id prices at the close of business on the reporting date  Prices are provided by
vendors such as Reuters or Bloomberg or by direct reference to the Stock Exchange

For quoted debt security investments, bid prices on the reporting date are cbtained from index providers who obtain prices
from a number of leading brokers, investment banks and market makers Where no ndependent price 1s available, a
valuation techmque 1s used to determine fair valve The techmque uses a spread over a comparable term gilt as the best
estimate of far value Spreads are calculated by reference to the wider market movement 1n credit spreads, the way in which
the security 1s structured, other assets 1ssued by the i1ssuer or other assets with similar characteristics

For corporate bonds, the Company’s management perform a comparison of information received from the index provider
used against other available price sources on a monthly basis to ensure that prices can be supported by market data
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

Accounting policies (continued)

[n addition to the measurement policies, investment asset prices are reviewed weekly 10 idenufy those assets where the pnce
has not moved for at least six days This review provides an imtial indication that the market far each idenufied asset may be
mactive These assets are then reviewed by management who may identify an alternative price source for assets which in their
view are still actively traded On conclusion that a particular asset 15 1lhquid, management willidentify an alternative
valuauon techmique by deciding whether an approprate price can be obtained from a recogmsed independent broker Where
this 1s the case, the broker will be approved as a pnce source for the asset A price will then be obtained ffom the broker on a
monthly basis A review of all ilhiquid assets and prices obtained or calculated 1s conducted by an internal pricing committee
on a monthly basis

Ungquoted Investments

The fair value of holdings 1n OEICs and Unit Trusts 1s determined as the last published price applicable to the OEIC sub-
fund or the Unit Trust at the reporting date  These are classified as unquoted equity investments

In order to ensure that a farr value ts recognised for unquoted or 1lhiquid debt securities, the pnmary pnce source 15 an
external broker valuaton If available, a further external broker valuation 1s sought as a secondary valuation source 1n order
to vahidate the primary source A formal review 1s then carned out which challenges the external valuatien and ncludes
constderation of the impact of any relevant movements in undetlying variables such as

underlying movements n the relevant markets, for example credit spreads,

how current transactions are being priced in the market,

how the secunity 1s structured, and

any supporting quantitative analysis as appropriate, for example with reference to Bloomberg or internat models

¢ * o @

Net realised gains and losses on assets and Liabjlities at fair value through mcome

Realised gains and losses on assets and hiabilities are calculated as the difference between net sale proceeds and the ongmal
cost and are recognsed in the statement of comprehensive income n the period 1n which they anse, within net realised gains
and losses on assets and habilities at taw value through income

Net fair value gains and losses on assets and liabilities at fair value through income

Unrealised gains and losses on assets and hiabilities are calculated as the difference between the current valuation of the asset
or habulity at the reporting date and the onginal cost Movements tn unrealised gains and losses ansing are recogmsed in the
statement of comprehensive income 1n the pertod 1 which they anse, within net fair value gains and losses on assets and
habihities at fair value through income The movement in the unrealised gains and losses recognised in the year also includes
the reversal of unreahised gains and losses recogmsed 1n earlier accounting peniods 1n respect of asset disposals and habihity
discharges in the current period

{) Cash and cash ¢quivalents

Cash and cash equivalents mncludes cash at bank, short-term highly liguid investments with original maturities of three
months or less (excluding such investments as otherwise meet this defimition but which are held for investment purposes
rather than for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments) and bank overdrafis where a legal nght of set-off
exists

(m) Impairment

Financial assets

The carrying value of all financial assets 15 reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances ndicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable The 1dentification of impairment and the determination of recoverable amounts s
an inherently uncertain process involving various assumptions and factors, mcluding the financial condition of the
counterparty, expected future cash flows, observable fair prices and expected net selling prices
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

1  Accounting pohcies (continued)

In order to determine whether financial assets are impaired, all financial assets for which the fair value has fallen below cost
price either by a significant amount or for a prolonged penod of time are individually reviewed A distinction 1s made
between negative revaluations due to general market fluctuations and due to issuer-specific developments The impairment
review focuses on 1ssuer-specific developments regarding financial condition and future prospects, taking into account the
intent and ability to hold the securities under the Company’s long term investment strategy

Non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinmite useful hfe, for example land, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 1n circumsances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An mparrment loss 15 recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value in use For the purpose of

assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 1dentifiable cash flows

If there 15 objective evadence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss 1s charged to the relevant line 1n
the statement of comprehensive income 1n the peried in which it occurs

Impairment process

Objective evidence that an asset or group of assets 1s impaired includes observable data that comes 1o the attertion of the
Company about the following events

(1) significant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or debtor,

{11) a breach of contract,

{11) the disappearance of an active market for that asset because of financial difficulties, or

(1v) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cashfiow from a group of

assets since the imitial recognition of those assets, even where the decrease cannot yet be idenufied with the
mdividual assets of the Company including

- adverse changes in the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors, or

- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Company

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for assets that are individually
significant  If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed asset,
whether significant or not, 1t includes the asset in a group of assets with simular credit risk characteristics and collecuvely
assesses them for ympairment Those charactenistics are relevant to the estimation of future cashflows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the 1ssuer’s ability to pay all amounts due under the contractval terms of the debt instrument
being evaluated Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 15 or continues to be
recogrused are not included n a collective assessment of impairment

(n) Taxes

Tax on the profit or loss for the year 1s recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive tncome within taxation and comprses
current and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the pened, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, together with adjustments to eshimates made 1n prior years

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of
assets and liabihties and ther carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date However, 1f the
deferred income tax anises from imtial recogmtion of an asset or hability 1n a transaction other than a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it 1s not accounted for The amount of
deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of reahisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilitics, vsing tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date
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1

Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred income tax asseis are only recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
aganst which the temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utihsed

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporuing date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilised

Allocation of tax charge between equity shareholder and pohicvholders

The tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income 15 analysed between policyholder and shareholder tax  This
allocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of tax which will be applied to the returns under current UK tax rules

(o) Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there 1s no obligation to transfer cash or other assets Incremental costs directly
attributable to the 1ssue of equity mstruments are shown n equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of 1ax

(p) Insurance contracts

The Company 1ssues life insurance contracts to protect customers from the consequences of events (such as death, critical
illness or disabihity) that would affect the ability of the customer or their dependants to maintain their current level of income
and alse anmunty contracts  Guaranteed claims pmd on occurrence of the specified insured event are either fixed or linked to
the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholder

Insurance contracts which are not unit-linked

The hability 1s calculated by esimating the future cash flows over the duration of in-force policies and discounting them back
to the valuation date, allowing for probabilities of occurrence The hability will vary with movements in interest rates and
with the cost of hife assurance and annuity benefits where future mortality 1s uncertain ~ Assumptions are made (n respect of
atl matenal factors affecting future cash flows including future interest rates, mortality and costs Changes in the value of
these habihties are recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income through changes in insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contracts which are umit-hinked

Allocated premiums in respect of unit-linked msurance contracts are recognised as habilities These habihities are increased
or reduced by the change n the unit prices and are reduced by policy adminsstration fees, mortahity and surrender charges
and any withdrawals The mortality charges deducted 1n each period from the policyholders as a group are considered
adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims 1n excess of the contract account balances 1n each period and hence
no additional habhty 1s established for these claims Revenue consists of fees deducted for mortality, policy admimistration
and surrender charges Interest or changes tn the unit prices credited to the account balances incurred n the pered are
charged as expenses n the statement of comprehensive income, through changes i insurance contract habilities as
appropnale Benefit claims in excess of the account balances incurred in the period are charged as expenses in the statement
of comprehensive income, through gross claims and benefits paid

Receivables and payables

Receivables and payables are recogmised when due  These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance
contract holders

(q) Provisions for other iabilities and charges

Provistons are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when 1t
15 probable that the obligation wili result in an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the ttime value of money and, where approprate, the
risks specific to the hability

Contingent hiabilities are possible obhigations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those
present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably




ST ANDREW'S LIFE ASSURANCE PLC (3104670) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued)

1 Accounting pohcies (continued)

(r) Investment contracts without DPF

The Company has 1ssued investment contracts without fixed terms (urut-hnked) In accordance with industry practice, these
contracts are accounted for as financial habilites, the values of which are contractually linked to the fair values of financial
assets within the Company’s unitised investment funds The value of the umt-lhinked financial habilities 15 determined using
current umt prices multiphed by the number of uruts attnbuted to the policyholders at the reporting date The value of the
liabilities 15 never less than the amount payable on surrender, discounted for the required notice peniod where applicable

The best evidence of the fair value of these financial habilities at initial recognition 1s the transaction price unless the far
value of that instrument 15 evidenced by comparison with other observable market transactions in the same instrument or
based on a valuation techmque whose vanables include only data from observable markets Any profit arising on mnitial
measurement of these imvestment contracts 1s deferred as a habihity for the future investment management services that the
Company will render to each policyholder The deferred income balance 15 recogmsed over the estimated lives of the
contracts, in line with the provision of investment management services unless there 1s evidence to support an alternative
recognition basis

The clement of premiums and claims 1n respect of investment contracts without DPF which 1s invested or withdrawn on
behalf of the pohicyholder 1s excluded from the statement of comprehensive income, with all movements in the policyholder
liability and related assets being recorded in the balance sheet, within investment contract habiliies Changes in the value of
the mnvestment contract habilities relating to the changes in the value of backing assets are recognised through the statement
of comprehensive income, within change in investment contract liabihities

(s) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, Lability adequacy tests are performed 1o ensure the adequacy of the insurance contract habihities net
of related deferred costs In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handhing
and policy administration expenses, as well as investment income from assets backing such habihities. are used Any
deficiency 15 immediately charged to the statement of comprehensive income, imtially by wnting off the relevant assets and
subsequently by establishing a provision for losses ansing from the habiity adequacy tests

(t) Other financial habilities

Other financial habilities are imtially recognised at far value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amorused cost In pracuice, the carrying value of these balances equates to the far value due to the short-term
nature of the amounts included within other financial habihties

{u) Foreign currency translation

Items included 1n the financial statements of each of the Group’s enuities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates {the “functional currency”™) The financial statements are presented 1n
pounds sterhing, {rounded 1o the nearest mullion (*£m™)), which 15 the Company’s presentational and functional currency

Assets and habiliies denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterhng at the exchange rates ruling at the
reporting date Revenue transactions and those relating to the acquisition and realisation of investments have been translated
at average rates of exchange (unless this 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, 1n which case revenue transactions are translated at the dates of the transactions) Any exchange
differences are dealt with 1n that part of the statement of comprehensive income 1n which the underlying transaction 18
reported

(v) Collateral

The Company receives or pledges collateral in the form of cash or secunties n respect of denvative transactions it
undertakes Denvative collateral pledged or received 1s recognised as a hability or asset on the balance sheet Derivative
collateral that has been received in the form of cash 15 invested m a cash or cash equivalent investment vehicle which
provides immediate hquidity Income from coliateral 1s used to pay the miterest obligations to the counterparty

The Company also receives collateral in the form of secunities in respect of stock lending agrecements Collateral received
against stock lent 1s not recorded on the balance sheet but 15 appropniately segregated from the assets of the Company
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2

Critical accounting estimates and judgnents i applying accounting policies

The Company’s management makes estmates and judgments that affect the reported amount of assets and habilities
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Revisions 10 accountng estimates
are recogmsed in the period in which the estimate 15 revised and n any future peniods affected

(a) Insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate hability ansing from msurance contracts which are not unit-linked 1s the Company’s most
critical accounting estimate

The liabilities are calculated using a projection of future cash flows after making prudent assumptions about matters such as
investment return, expenses, credit default and mortality Discount rates used to value the Labilites are set with reference to
the nisk adjusted yields on the underlying assets The most critical non-economic assumptions are mortality rates in respect of
annuity business written and levels of future expenses Such assumptions are based on recent actual experience,
supplemented by mndustry information where appropriate

At each reporting date, the estimates and assumptions referred to above are reassessed for adequacy and changes will be
reflected 1n adjustments to the iabihty Further information on these balances 1s given 1n note 25

Sensitivities regarding changes to key assumptions in calculating insurance contractliabilities are given n note 25
(b) Deferred costs

For insurance contracts, acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial period but which relate to subsequent
financial periods are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins  All other costs are
recogmsed as expenses when incurred  The calculation of the deferred acquisition cost asset and 11s pattern of amortisation
requires estimation of both the expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins and the penod that the business 1s
expected to remaun in force  Further information on this assel 1s given in note 11

The recognition of costs and income 1n respect of investment contracts without DPY 1s governed by 1AS 18 ‘Revenue
Under this standard, directly attnbutable and ncremental costs to securing new business are capitalised and are then
subsequently amortised over the period of the provision of the investment management services Estimation is required of the
peniod that the business 1s expected to remain n force and prudent assumptions are required for contracts which do not have
a fixed matunity date

(¢) Accruals and deferred income

For 1nvesiment contracts without DPF, the recogmtion of income 15 governed by 1AS 18 “Revenue” Income recerved for
services to be provided n future periods 1s deferred and recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as the service
1s provided As above, estimation 1s required of the period that the business 15 expecied to remain in force and prudent
assumptions are required for contracts which do not have a fixed matunty date  Further information on this habihty is given
n note 21

{d)} Taxation

The Company recognises current and deferred tax assets in hne with IAS 12 Income Taxes”™ In recogmsing these assets,
management takes into account the likely impact of tax 1ssues that are subject to ongoing discussion with HM Revenue and
Customs and other tax authonties With regard to the Company’s deferred tax assets, a significant feature 15 the management
Judgment applied 1n determining the timing, sensitivities and probability of them reversing This yjudgment 1s based on tax
forecasts reflecting new business assumptions, senstivities and proposed management actions  Further information n
relatron to the Company’s current and deferred tax assets 1s set out at notes 10 and 12
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3  Fee and commission income

2009 2008
£m £m
Change 1n deferred income ot 46
Other 24 35
Total 25 81
4  Investment income
2009 2008
£m £m
Investments at fair value through ncome
Interest income on investments 1723 916
Interest income on deposits 01 20
Dividend income 2610 4157
Rental tncome on investment properties 70 31
Other 13 1)
Total 4417 5123
5. Net realised losses on assets and hiabilities at fair value through mcome
2009 2008
£m £m
Denvative financial instruments at fair value through income 318) 2228
Investments at fair value through income - -
Equity securities (104 7} (5151)
Debt securities 498 637
Investment properties at fair value through income (14 4) (26)
Total (101 1) (2312)
6 Net fair value gains / (losses) on assets and habilities at fair value through income
2009 2008
£m £m
Denvative financial instruments at fair value through income 63 723
Investments at fair value through income
Lquity securihies 1,360 4 2,07122)
Debt securities (110 8) 665
Investment properties at fair value through income 214 (350)
Foreign exchange 10 (06)
Total 1,265 5 (1,969 0)
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7. Operating expenses

2009 2008
£m £m
Acquisition and onigination costs 1n respect of insurance and mmvestment contracts 1304 1525
Expenses for administration 329 345
1633 1870
Change 1n deferred costs 11 83
Total 164 4 1953
Acquisition and origination costs and expenses for administration can be analysed as follows
2009 2008
£m £m
Commssion payable 106 3 1408
Auditors’ remuneration (see note 9} 03 01
Other expenses 567 46 1
Total 1633 1870

The admimstration of the Company 15 undertaken by HBOS plc A recharge 1s levied from this undertaking to the Company
in respect of those costs ncurred on behalf of the Company

The Company had no direct employees duning the year (2008 mil} The employee costs, including pension costs and share-
based payment costs, are included in the recharge from HBOS plc noted above
8 Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable for the audit of the statutory accounts for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 were £90,629
(2008 £38,705)

Fees payable for the audit of Lloyds Banking Group reporting retums for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009
were £135,943 (2008 mib)

Fees payable for the audit of HBOS plc reporting returns for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 were il
{2008 £88,0573)

Fees payable for services pursuant to legisiation for the year ended 3 | December 2009 were £48,000 (2008 £48,230)

9  Finance costs

2009 2008

£m £m
Other interest payable 26 48
Total 26 48
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10 Taxation

(a) Current year tax charge/(credit)

2009 2008
£m £m
Current tax*
UK corporation tax 16 6 322
Overseas tax 07 -
Adjustment in respect of prior years 03 (230}
Total current tax 176 92
Deferred tax:
Ongination/(reversal) of temporary differences 1299 (334 3)
Adjustment in respect of prior years (74) 64
Total deferred tax 1225 (3279)
Total income tax charge/(credit) 140 1 (318 7)

The policyholder tax benefit or expense 1s included in income tax expense Policyholder tax 15 a charge of £212 8m (2008

credit of £378 4m), including a prior year tax crecht of £15 6m (2008 charge of £11 2m}

{b) Reconciliation of tax charge/(credit)

2009 2008

£m £m
Profit before tax 304 214
Tax at 28% (2008. 28 5%) 85 61
Effects of
UK tax basis for life nsurance profits 197 106 5
Policyholder tax 1421 (378 4)
Adjustment to tax charge 1n respect of prior years 85 (27 6)
Overseas tax 07 17
Other - 270)
Total 140 1 (3187

The Finance Act 2007 reduced the rate of corperation tax from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 Apnl 2008 Theimpact of
this reduction 1n tax rate, which resulted 1n a weighted average rate of 28 5% being applied to the profit for the prior year, 15

reflected 1n the above table
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11

12.

Deferred costs

Deferred ongination costs

2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 January - 53
Other movements - (5 3)
At 31 December - -
Deferred acquisition costs
2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 January 2759 2789
Amounts incurred duning the period 738 732
Amortisation during the period (74 9) (815)
Other movements - 53
At 31 December 274 8 2759

Of the above total, £193 1m (2008 £218 6m ) 15 expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

The £3 3m other movement 1n 2008 15 m respect of the Investment Bond product Accidental death cover was added to the
product benefits duning 2008 The accidental death cover has created insurance nisk n respect of the product Therefore from
July 2008 1t was no longer classed as an invesument product under 1AS39 Financial Instruments - Recogmtion and

Measurement, but as an msurance product under IFRS4 [nsurance contracts

Tax assets and habihties

2009 2008

£m £m
Current tax receivables 166 190
Deferred tax assets 2657 4358
Total tax assets 2823 454 8
Current tax payables 313 244
Deferred tax liabihities 1565 2041
Total tax habilities 187 8 2283

Deferred tax assets and habilities included in the above table are expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting

date
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(a) Recognised deferred tax

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to offset current tax assets
against current tax habihities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authonty The amounts are as
follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Deferred tax assets comprise:
Expenses deductible 1n future periods 1013 9506
Unrealised losses on investment assels 1504 3452
Other mnsurance related 1tems 140 -
Total deferred tax assets 2657 4358
Deferred tax habilities comprise
Deferred costs 769 772
Other 1nsurance related items 79 6 126 9
Total deferred tax habilities 156 5 204 1
Net deferred tax assets 109 2 2317

The deferred tax balances include an asset of £150 4m (2008 asset of £345 2m) in respect of unrealised losses on
mvestments Cashflow projections undertaken indicate that there will be scope to offset these losses against future taxable
profits anising on existing contracts

The tax {charge)/credit in the income statement relating to each of the above items 15 as follows

2009 2008

£m £m
Tax on deferred income - 04
Expenses deductible in future periods (107 313
Unrealised gains on 1investment assets 194 8 (449 8)
Deferred acquisition costs 03 (23)
Other insurance items {61 3) 925
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 1225 (327 9)

(b) Unrecogmsed deferred tax

Deferred income tax assets are recogmised for tax loss carry forwards only to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit 1s probable
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13

14

Investment properties
2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 January 106 1 1265
Addions — new properties 01 182
Disposals (39 5) (6 6)
Net gain/(loss) from change n fair values 214 (350)
At 31 December 881 106 1

The rental income anising from investment properties during the year amounted to £7 Om (2008 £3 1m), which 1s included in
investment imcome Direct operating expenses (included within operating expenses) anising 1n respect of such investment
properties during the year amounted to £0 2m (2008 £0 Om}

The investment properties are independently valued by Colliers CRE on at least a quarterly basis for the purpose of
determining the open market value of the properties

Investment properties are generally recoverable more than one year after the reporting date

Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into swap contracts, option contracts, index futures contracts and
forward foreign exchange contracts  All such contracts are undertaken either for efficient portfolio management purposes
or for the purpose of matching contractual habilhities

Swap contracts include interest rate swaps An interest rate swap 15 an agreement between two parties to exchange fixed and
variable rate interest payments based upon interest rates defined in the contract, without the exchange of the vnderlying
princtpal amount

Option contracts include index and single equity options  Such options represent a contract sold by one party to another
party offering the right, but not the obhgation, to buy or sell a financial asset at an agreed price on a specified future date or
within a specified period of time

Index futures contracts are used to hedge the mvestment portfolio aganst adverse movements 1n underlying markets or

cffecting policy switches between markets without the need to trade the underlying securities  Futures may also be used for

the purposes of efficient portfolic management provided that their substance would otherwise be permitted as a series of .
direct transactions

Forward foreign exchange contracts are an agreement to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified
future date at an agreed rate

Details regarding derivative financial instruments are grven in the following tables

2009 2008
Contract Fair value Fawr value Contract Fair value Fair value ‘
Amount asset habilities Amount asset habilities
£m £fm £fm £m £fm £m
Denvative financial instruments held for
trading
Swap contracts 3,529 8 157 3 149 2,750 0 1690 137
Option contracts 3,336 6 138 16 08 64 -
Index futures contracts 3000 13 36 2319 - 71
Forward foreign exchange
contracts 305 05 - 3132 23 4 379
Total 7.196 9 173 1 201 3,295 9 198 8 58 7
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14 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derivauve financial instrument assets include £169 2m (2008 £168 8m) that 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after
the reporting date

Dernvauve financial instrument habilities include £14 9m (2008 £20 Om) that 15 expected to be settled more than one year after
the reporting date

The amount of £144 Im (2008 £154 Tm) was accepted by the Company 1n assets that 1t 1s permutted to sell or repledge in the

absence of default of the owner of the collateral No collateral was sold or repledged durning the year or 1n the prior year The
Company has an obligation to return these assets to the pledgor

15 Loans and receivables

2009 2008
£fm £m
Insurance business
Amounis receivable 1n respect of direct insurance business 104 131
Amounts recetvable under reinsurance contracts 03 08
Other loans and receivables
Accrued interest and rent 202 236
Amounts due from related parties T 90 352
Others 30 129
Total 429 856

Of the above total, £Ni1l (2008 £Nil) ts expected to be recovered more than one year afier the reporting date

Amounts due from reinsurers represent reinsurance receivables where the Company has the right to cover losses on contracts
provided to policyholders

None of the above balances are interest bearing {2008 nil)

There 1s no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to loans and receivables Further information i respect of
credit nisk 1s given n note 26

16. Investments at fair value through income

2009 2008
£m £m
At faur value.
Shares and other vartable yield securities
Listed 996 6 6264
Unlisted 102729 8,308 4
11,269 5 8,934 8
Debt and other fixed/variable income secuntics 1,8137 20189
Total investments at fair value 13,0832 10,953 7

Of the total debt secunties above, £1,484 9m (2008 £1,475 9m) are Iisted government bonds

Of the debt secunties, £1,479 9m (2008 £1,779 7m) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year afier the reporting date Due
to the nature of equity securiies and mvestments in pooled investment funds, there 15 no fixed term associated with these
securiies
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16 Investments at fair value through income continued

The Company enters mnto secunities lending transactions and repurchase agreements, whereby cash and securities are
temporanly received or transferred as collateral Where the secunties sold subject to repurchase are retained on the balance
sheet the funds received under these arrangements are recogmsed as liabilites  Assets and liabihities relating 1o such

arrangements at 31 December are as follows

Asset Related
Liability
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Equity Investments - 83 - 87
Debt Investments - 8616 01 9574
Assets subject to repurchase - 865 % 01 966 1
17. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for use in the statement of cash flows include the foliowing
2009 2008
£m £m
Cash at bank 176 341
Short term deposits 396 710
Total 572 1051

Cash and cash equivalents in the above table contains amounts of £55 3m (2008 £103 3m) which are held enurely within the

long-term insurance funds of the Company These balances are not therefore readily available for use by the Company

18 Share capital

2009 2008
£m £m
Authorised share capital
360,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 3600 3600
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital
360,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 3600 3600

There were no changes in ordinary share capital during the year

19 Insurance contract habilities

An analysis of the change 1n insurance contract liabilities and reinsurers’ share of nsurance contract liabilities s as follows

2009 2008

£m £m £fm £m £fm £m

Gross  Remsurance Net Gross  Rewnsurance Net
At 1 January 10,7213 100 1 10,6212 11,9950 2588 11,736 2
Provisions 1n respect of new business 1,865 1 14 1,863 7 2,1299 07 2,1292
Change 1n existing business provisions 104 O (24 3) 1283 (3,402 2) (159 4) (3,242 8)
Impact of changes in assumption 03 208 (205) 14) - a4
At 31 December 12,690 7 98 O 12,592 7 10,7213 100 1 10,621 2
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19

20

21

22

Insurance contract habihties continued

As the Company 15 wholly owned by an entity which prepares group financial statements, the Company has taken advantage
of the provisions contamed in FRS 27 and has not presented a capital position statement and supporting disclosures
Information 1n which the Company 1s meluded 1s giver 1n the financial statements of Lloyds Banking Group plc

An analysis of the contractual and expected matunties of insurance contract habilities 15 given 1n note 26

Provisions for other habilities and charges

2009 2008

£m £m
At 1 January - -
Provisions made during the year 21 -
Provisions utihised durning the year - -
At 31 December 21 -
Of the above total, £2 1 (2008 £0m) 15 expected to be unhsed more than one year afier the reporting date

Accruals and deferred income

2009 2008

£m £m
Accrued expenses - 40
Deferred income - 01
Total - 41
Of the above total, £N11 (2008 £4 1m) 15 expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date

Investment contract abilities
An analysis of the change 1n net investment contract habilities 1s as follows
2009 2008
Investment contract without DPF £m £m £m £m £fm £m
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

At I January 99 - 99 24476 - 24476
Provisions in respect of new business
Change in existing business provisions (12) - {12) (2,4377) - (24377
Impact of changes 1n assumptiens - - - - - -
At 31 December 87 - 87 99 - 99

An analyss of the contractual and expected maturities of investment contract habilities 1s given in note 26
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23. Other financial habilities

2009 2008
£m £m
Insurance business
Amounts payable in respect of direct insurance business 37 34
Claims outstanding [100 892
Amounts payable on reinsurance contracts 05 04
QOther habilities
Due to related parties 736 425
Due to brokers 220 126
Other 1513 170 6
Total 3611 3187

Of the above total, £140 8m (2008 £132 8m) 15 expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date

24 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets and habilities

2009 2008
£m £m
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Investment properties 180 234
Amounts due from reinsurers m respect of insurance contracts 21 158 7
Financial assels
Investments {2,129 5) 3,448 4
Loans and recervables including insurance receivables 427 652
Denvative financial instruments 257 (130 0)
Net (increase) / decrease in operating assets (2,041 0) 3,565 7
Increase / (Decrease) in operating habilities:
Insurance contract habilities 1,969 4 (1,273 7)
Financial liabilities
Investment contract liabilities (12) (24377
Derivative financial instruments (38 6) 549
Orher financial habilities 424 104 4
Provision for other Liabilities and charges 21 -
Accruals and deferred mcome @n {05)
Net increase / (decrease) in operating habilities 1,970 0 (3,552 6)
Net (mcrease) / decrease in operating assets and habihities (71 &) 131
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25

Insurance and investment contract habilities — assumptions, change in assumptions and sensitivities

All policyhotder habihties are non-profit fund habilities and are accounted for using a traditional prospective actuanal
discounted cash flow methodology

(1) Processes used to determine key assumptions n respect of insurance and investment contracts

Liabihties of the non-profit funds

{a) Insurance contracts

The habilities of the Company are determined on the basis of recognised actuanial metheds and consistently with the approach to
be used for the FSA retums The methods used involve esumating future policy cashflows over the duration of the in-force book
of policies, and discounting these cashflows back to the valuation date allowing for probabiliies of occurrence

The habilities will vary with movements 1n interest rates (this applies mn particular to the cost of guaranteed benefits payable in the
future) and with movements in the cost of life assurance and annuity benefits for which future mortality 1s uncertain

Assumptions are made 1n respect of all material factors affecting future cashflows, including future interest rates, mortality and
costs Generally, assumptions used to value the lLiabilities contamn a margin for adverse deviation and are determined as
required by FSA rules This margin for adverse deviation 1s based on management’s judgment and reflects management’s
views on the inherent tevel of uncertainty The assumptions to which the habihties are most sensitive are the interest rales
used to discount the cashflows and the mortality assumptions The key assumptions used in the measurement of the non-profit
fund liabihties are

Interest rates

The rates used are derived conststently with the approach to be used for the FSA returns These limit the rates of interest
that can be used by reference to a number of factors including the dividend and earmings yiclds on equitics rental
income and redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation date Margins for nsk are allowed for in the
assumed 1nterest rates These are denived from the himits contained m the FSA Rules, including reductions made to the
available yields to allow for default risk based upon the credit rating of each stock, and an over-tiding restriction which
limits the yield from mvestments in property by reference to the yield from appropriate long-term gilts

Mortality and morbidity

The mortahty and morbidity assumptions are set with regard to the Company's actual experience where this provides a
reliable basis, and relevant industry data otherwise, and includes a margan for adverse deviation

Maintenance €Xpenscs

Allowance 1s explicitly made for future policy costs Expense loadings are determined by reference to an intemnal analysis
of current and expected future expense levels, plus 2 margin for adverse deviations Explicit allowance 1s made for future
expense inflabon from the valuation date No allowance 1s made for any expected reductions in expense levels that have
not occurred at the valuation date

Persistency rates

Prudent lapse rate assumptions have been used for term assurance business Whether a lapse rate 1s prudent broadly
depends on whether the policy 1s negative or positive at any point in its hfe, thus for each policy a high lapse rate 1s
assumed at points where the projected hability 1s negative and a low lapse rate 1s assumed at points where the projected
hability is positive

(b) Investment contracts without discretionary participation feature

These contracis are unit-linked, and the habihity 1s determmed as the value of the units allocated to the contracts
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(2) Key assumptions

Non-profit funds

The principal assumptions underlying the calculation of the non-profit fund habilities are given below

{a) Investment returns and discount rates

2009 2008
Interest rate Interest rate
Class of business (net) (net)
%o %
Conventional Life business 211 259
Non-unit reserves on linked business 211 34
{b) Mortalhity assumptions
The mortality assumptions for the matin classes of business are as follows
Term Assurances 2009 2008
Males
Smoker 109% TMSO0U 138% TM92U
Non-Smoker 86% TMNOOU 61% TM92U
Females
Smoker 115% TFS00U 94% TF92U
Non-Smoker 103 3% TFNOOU 94% TF92U
Investment Bonds 2009 2008
Males 88% AMCO0OU 72% AM92 U
Females 83% AFCO0OU 121% AF92 U
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(c) Lapse_assumptions

The lapse assumptions for the main classes of business are as foliows

2009
Description Average lapse / surrender rate (% pa) for the pohcy years
1-5 6-10  11-15  16-20
Term Assurances — Life and Critical Illness Lapse 178 155 130 130
Term Assurances - Accelerated Critical Hiness Lapse 235 190 150 150
Investment Bonds Surrender 35 66 56 56
2008
Description Average lapse / surrender rate (% pa) for the policy years
1-5 6-10  11-15  16-20
Term Assurances — Life and Critical illness Lapse 225 193 175 133
Term Assurances - Accelerated Critical ltiness Lapse 225 193 175 133
Investment Bonds Surrender 20 20 20 20

(3) The effect of changes 1n key assumptions

Non-profit funds

Changes in certain key assumptions were made duning 2009 with the following impacts on profit before tax

Varmable Impact on profit before tax
2009 2008
£m £fm

Mortality 03 -

Expenses (13) (03)

(4) Sensitivity analysis (in respect of insurance contracts only)

Non-profit funds

The following table demonstrates the effect of changes in key assumptions on profit before tax assuming that the other
assumptions remain unchanged In practice this 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some assumptions may be correlated

Insurance contracts without DPF

Variable Change in variable Impact on profit before tax
2009 2008
£m £m
Non annuitant mortality 3% reduction 05 i4
Lapses 10% reduction - -
Maintenance expenses 10% reduction 17 27
Interest rate — change 1n redemption yield ? 0 25% reduction 41 (133

(1) This interest rate sensiuvity shows the impact of a 0 25 per cent movement in gilt yields and all of the consequential impacts
on key economic assumpttons including the nisk discount rate, investment retums, the valuation rates of interest and values
of assets backing the business 1n question This excludes any impact on assets not backing the liabihties
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26.

Risk Management

The Company 1ssues contracts that transfer insurance and financial nisk or both This note summarises these nsks and the way
in which the Company manages them

(a) Governance framework

The Company 15 part of the Insurance Division of Lloyds Banking Group This Division has established a risk management
funcuon with responsibility for implementing the Lloyds Banking Group nisk management framework within the Company

The Company assesses the refative costs and concentrations of each type of nisk through the Individual Capital Assessment
(“ICA™) and matenal 1ssues are escalated to the Insurance Risk Cormmittee, the Clerical Medical Executive Commuttee and
the HBOS FS Board

The approach to nsk management ensures that there 15 effective independent checking or “oversight” of key decistons
through the operation of a “three Iines of defence” model The first line of defence i1s line management, who have direct
accountability for nsk decisions Risk management provide oversight and challenge and form the second hine of defence
Internal Audit constitutes the third line of defence, which provides the required independent assurance to the Board that risks
within the Company are recognised, monitored, and managed within acceptable parameters

An enterprise-wide risk management framework for the identification, assessment, measurement and management of risk 1s 1n
place The framework 15 1n hne with Lloyds Banking Group’s rnisk management principles and covers the full spectrum of
r1sks that the Company 1s exposed to Under this framework, nsks are categorised according to an approved Lloyds Banking
Group nsk language which has been adopted across the Company This covers the principal financial nsks faced by the
Company, tncluding the exposures to market, insurance, credit and financial soundness nsk The performance of the
Company, its contimung ability to write business and the strategic management of the business depend on 1its ability to
manage these nsks

Lloyds Banking Group retains prumary responsibility for the management of mvestment nisks ansing in respect of the
shareholder funds within the Company These funds are managed 1n line with the Lloyds Banking Group risk policies

Policy owners, 1dentified from appropriate areas across the business, are responsible for drafung the Lloyds Banking Group
nsk poheies, for ensuring that they remain up-to-date and for facilitating any changes These policies are subject to at least
an annua!l review, or earlier if deemed necessary Limits are prescribed within which those responsible for the day 1o day
management of each Lloyds Banking Group company can take decisions Line management are required to follow
prescribed reporting procedures to the bodies responsible for monitoring comphance with poelicy and controlling the nisks

(b) Risk appetite

The Company has defined the methodology for the management of risk appetite and has approved appropriate limits  Where
approprate for each life company and risk component, limits are defined in terms of the amount of capital required to be held
to cover certain specified stressed scenartos

Exposure to each type of nisk 1s monitored against prescribed limits and the results of these tests are reported to semor
management

(¢} Financial risks

The Company writes a variety of msurance contracts which are subject to a vaniety of financial risks, as set out below
Contracts can be either single or regular premium and conventional {non-profit) or unit-linked mn nature

The Company 1s exposed to a range of financial nsks through its financial assets, financial hiabihities, remnsurance assets and
insurance and investment contract habilites In parucular, the key financial risk 1s that long-terim investment proceeds are not
sufficient to fund the obligations arising from s msurance and investment contracts The most important components of
financial risk are market, insurance, credit and financial soundness risk

The market nsks that the Company pnimanly faces due to the nature of its investments and liabihties are interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity and property risk.

The Company manages these risks in a numbers of ways, including nisk appetite assessment and monitoring of capital resource
requirements The Company also uses financial instruments (including denvatives) as part of its business activities and to reduce
1ts own exposure to market nsk and credit nsk

The Company bears financial nsk in relation to the guaranteed benefits payable under these contracts  The amount of the
guaranteed benefits increases as additional benefits are declared and allocated to policies
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For umt-linked business, policyhelders’ benefits are closely hnked to the mvestment returns on the underlying internal funds In
the short term, profit and equity are therefore largely unaffected by mvestment returns on assets in intemal unit-hinked funds as
any gains or losses will be largely offset by changes in the commespending insurance and investment contract liabihties  However,
any change in the market value of these fiunds will have an indirect impact on the Company through the collection of annual
management and other fund related charges As markets nse or fall, these charges nise or fall correspondingly

For non-profit business, the principal market risk 15 interest rate nisk, which arises because assets and liabihties may exhibit
differing changes in market value as a result of changes in interest rates  Asset and Lability matching 15 used to mitigate the
impact of changes n interest rates where sigmficant exposure exists

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost The summary
of significant accounting policies (note 1) describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured and how mcome and
expenses, including fair vatue gains and losses, are recognised

The following tables analyse the carrying amount of assets and habilities, with financial assets and financial habilitics bewng
presented according to their IAS 39 classification

2009 2008
£m £m

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 572 1051
At farr value through income

Investments at fair value through income

- equity secunties 11,269 5 83934 8
- debt securities 1,813 7 20189
Denvauve financial instruments 1731 198 8
At amortised cost
Loans and receivables 429 856
Rewnsurers’ share of imsurance contract habilities 980 1001
13454 4 11443 3
Other assets
Current iax receivable 166 190
Investment properties at fair value 88t 106 }
Deferred tax assets 2657 4358
Deferred costs 274 8 2759
6452 8368
Total assets 14,099 &6 12,280 1
2009 2008
£m £m
Financizl habihties
Insurance contract habilities 12,6907 10,721 3
At fair value through income
Investment contract habilities 87 99
Denvative financial instrurments 201 58 7
Other financtal habiliues 3611 3187
13,080 6 11,1086
Other habihties
Current tax payables 313 244
Accruals and deferred mmcome - 41
Provisions for other hialnhinies and charges 21 -
Deferred tax habilities 156 5 2041
189 9 232 6
Total habilities 13,270 5 11,3412

The timing of the unwind of the deferred tax assets and habilities ts dependent on the timing of the unwind of the temporary
timing differences, ansing between the tax bases of the assets and liabilites and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, to which these balances relate
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A matunty analysis of the financial habihties set out 1n the above tables 1s given 1n the hquidity nsk section of this note

The sensitvity analyses given throughout this note are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant In practice, this 15 unlikety that 1solated movements would occur as changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated, for example changes in interest rates and changes in equuty values The sensitivity analysis presented represents a
reascnably possible change n a single factor

{1) Market risk

Market nsk 1s the risk of reductions in earnmgs and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from unfavourable market
movements This nsk typically anses from fluctuations 1n market prices (equity and property risk), market interest rates
(interest rate nisk) and foreign exchange rates (foreign exchange nisk), whether such changes are caused by factors specific to
the mdividual nstrument or its 1ssuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market

Investment holdings within the Company are diversified across markets and, within markets, across sectors Holdings of
individual assets are diversified to minimise specific nsk and large individual exposures are monitored closely For assets held
within umt-linked funds, investments are only permitted in countries and markets which are sufficiently regulated and hqud

Market nisk policy 1s dependent on the nature of the funds 1n question, and can be broadly summarised as follows

» Assets held n sharcholder funds are invested in money market funds, gilts and investment grade bonds in line with the
policy of Lloyds Banking Group to optimise shareholder risk and return

+ Unit-lhinked assets are invested in accordance with the nature of the fund mandates

¢ Conventional non-profit habilities are “close matched” as far as possible 1n relation to currency, nature and duration

An analysis of financial assels and financtal habilities at fair value through income according to their fair value hierarchy (as
defined m note 1 (¢)} 15 given below - R -

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
Equity securities 11,269 5 - - 11,2695
Debt secunities 1,485 0 3287 - 1,8137
Denvative financial instruments 12 1719 - i73 1
Total assets 12,7557 500 6 - 13,256 3
Derivative financial instruments 36 16 5 - 201
Investment contract habilities - 87 - 87
Total habilities 36 252 - 288

Total gains or losses for the penod included 1n the statement of comprehensive income as well as total gains or losses relating
to assets and liabilities held at the reporting date are presented wn the statement of comprehensive income, through net
realised gains and losses on assets and habilities at fair value through income and net farr value gains and losses on assets
and hiabiliies at fair value through income respectively

In accordance with the transitionat provisions of the amendment to IFRS 7 which tntroduced the above reconcthation, no
comparative data has been provided

(1) Equity and property risk

The exposure of the Company’s nsurance and investment contract business o equity and property nsk relates to financial
assets and financial habilities whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices other than from interest and
foreign exchange fluctuations This 1s due to factors specific to indsvidual instruments, their 1ssuers or factors affecung all
mnstruments traded tn the market Accordingly, the Company mon:tors exposure limits both to any one counterparty and any
one market
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The sensitivity analysis below illustrates the impact on profit and shareholder equity of changes 1n equity and property prices,
net of offsetting movements 1n msurance and mvestment contract liabilities, at the reporting date

Impact on profit after tax and equity for the year

2009 2008

£m £m
10% (2008 10%) increase 1n equity prices 12 11
10% (2008 10%) decrease 1n equity pnces (12) (rn
10% (2008 10%) increase in property prices - 04
10% (2008 10%) decrease in property prices - 04

(n) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 1s the nisk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates and the shape of the yield curve Interest rate nisk in respect of the Company’s insurance and invesiment contracts
arises when there 1s 2 mismatch in duration or yield between Liabihines and the assets backing those habiliites

A fall in market nterest rates will result in a lower vield on the assels supporting guaranteed investment returns payable to
pelicyholders  This investment return guarantee nisk 1s managed by matching assets to liabilities as closely as possibie

An mncrease 1n market interest rates will result in a reduction mn the value of assets subject to fixed rates of interest which may
result in losses tf, as a result of an increase in the level of surrenders, the corresponding fixed income securities have to be sold

The effect of changes in interest rates 1n respect of financial assets which back insurance contract habilsties 15 given 1n note
25 The effect on the Company of changes in the value of investments held in respect of investment contract habilinies due to
fluctuations m market interest rates 1s neghgible as any changes will be offset by movements in the corresponding liability

The sensitivaty analysis below illustrates the impact on profit and sharcholder equity of changes in interest rate vields on
interest-bearing financial assets, net of offseting movements in 1nsurance and investment contract habihities, at the reporting
date

Impact on profit after tax and equity for the year

2009 2008

£m £m
25 basis points (2008 25 basis points) increase in yield curves 74 81
25 basis points (2008 25 basis points) decrease in yield curves (7 4) 84

The pnor year sensitivity set out above has been amended to present the profit and equity impact of the stated change in inferest
rates on the same basis as the current year calculation

(m) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange nsk relates to the effects of movements 1n exchange markets including changes 1 exchange rates The
overall nsk to the Company 1s mmimal due to the following

¢  The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in pounds sterling,

*  The Company’s financial assets are primanly denominated n the same currencies as 1ts insurance and investment contract
liabthties, and

e Other than shareholder funds, all non-linked investments of the non-profit funds are 1n sterling or are currency matched
The effect on the Company of changes in the value of invesiments held in respect of investment contract habihities due

1o fluctuations 1n foreign exchange rates is neghgible as any changes will be offset by movements in the corresponding
hability
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(2) Insurance risk

Insurance risk 1s the nsk of reductions 1n earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, due to fluctuations in the
uming, frequency and severnty of insured/underwritten events and to fluctuations in the timing and amount of claim
settlements This includes fluctuations 1n profits due to customer behaviour The principal nsk the Company faces under
msurance contracts 1s that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the amounts expected at the time of determining the
insurance hiabilitics

The nature of the Company s business involves the accepting of msurance risks which pnmanly relate to mortahty, mortndity,
persistency and expenses

The Company principally writes the following types of life insurance contracts

s  Life assurance — where the life of the policyholder 1s insured against death or permanent disability, usually for pre-
determined amounts
e Morbidity products — where the policyholder 1s insured against the nsk of contracting a defined illness

For contracts where death 15 the insured risk, the most sigmficant factors that could increase the overall level of claims are
epidemnics or widespread changes in hifestyle, such as cating, smoking and exercise habats, resulung 1n earlier or more claims
than expected  The possibibity of a pandemic arising from Swine Flu 18 regarded as a potentially significant mortality nisk

For contracts where survival 1s the insured nisk, the most significant factor 1s conttnued improvement in medical science and
social conditions that would increase longevity

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that
significantly reduce the insurance nsk accepted

Insurance nsk 1s alse affected by the policyhelders’ nght to pay reduced or no future premiums or to terminate the contract
completely  As a result, the amount of insurance nsk 1s also subject to policyholder behaviour  On the assumption that
pohcyholders will make decisions that are 1n their best interesis, overall msurance nisk will generally be aggravaied by
policyholder behaviour  Tor example, 1t 15 likely that policyholders whose health has deteriorated sigmficantly will be less
inchined to terminate contracts insuring death benetits than those policyholders who remain in good health

The Company has taken account of the expected impact of pelicyhelder behaviour 1n setting the assumptions used to measure
insurance and investment contract habilihies

The princtpal methods available to the Company to control or mitigate longevity, mortahity and morbidity nisk are through the
following processes

¢ Underwnting (the process to ensure that new nsurance proposals are properly assessed),

*  Prnicing-to-nsk (new msurance proposals would usually be priced mn accordance with the underwnung
assessment),

Claims management,

Product design,

Policy wording,

Product Management, and

®  The use of reinsurance and other risk mitigation techniques

Rates ot mortahty and morbidity are investigated annually based on the Company’s recent experience and future mortality
assumptions are set using the latest population data available Each Company’s remnsurance arrangements are reviewed at feast
annually

Persistency risk 1s the risk associated with the ability to retain long-term business and the ability to renew short-term business
The Company arms to reduce its exposure to persistency nisk through revising the commission structure on future product
developmenis and undertaking various iniiiatives to promote customer toyalty

Further mfermation on assumptions, changes 1n assumptions and sensitivities in respect of insurance contracts ts given in note
25
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(3) Credit nsk

Credit nisk 1s the nisk of reductions 1n earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, as a result of the falure of
the party with whom the Company has contracted to meet its obligations (both on and off balance sheet)

Investment counterparty default nsk anses pnmanly from holding invested assets te meet habiliies, and reinsurer default
credit risk primanly anises from exposure 10 remnsurers

Credit nsk n respect of unit-linked funds 15 borne by the policyholders Consequently, the Company has no sigmficant
exposure to cred:t risk for those funds The tables 1n this section reflect the credit risk on assets held within these funds, but
do not take account of the effseting reduction in hiabilities to unit-hinked policyholders that would be expected in the event
of default

For non-linked funds investments, limits on the exposure to a single entity are specified and monitored Bond exposures are
managed through credit rating bands and maximum exposures to individual assets and sectors are set Assets are restricted to
securities 1n a specified list of couniries, and hmits applhcable to property portfolios are set to prevent concentration of
exposure to single tenants and single buitdings

Shareholder funds are managed n line with the Lloyds Banking Group Credit Risk Policy and the principles are the same as
those outlmed above 1n respect of non-linked funds

Reinsurance 15 pnimanly used te reduce insurance nsk  However, 1t 15 also sought for other reasons such as improving
profitability, reducing capital requirements and obtaining technical support In addition, reinsurance 1s also used to offer
Investment Fund Links which we are unable to provide through other means The Company’s remsurance strategy 1S 10
reduce the volaulity of profits through the use of reinsurance whilst managing the nsurance and credit nisk within the
constraints of the nisk appetite lmats

The Company has reinsurance on hines of business where mortality or morbidity nsk exceeds set retention hmits  This does
not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary insurer  If a retnsurer fails to pay a claam for any reason, the
Company remains hable for the payment to the policyholder All new matenal retnsurance treatics are subject to Board
approval and all remnsurance arrangements are revicwed annually to ensure that the reinsurance strategy 15 being achieved
This includes an assessment of the exposure to each reinsurer to ensure that 1t 15 within the defined hmit

Pohicies are treated as lapsed when payments from the policyholder have not been recewved for a period of time and the
policyholder has not provided further information in respect of the non-payment of premiums

Exposure to other trade debtors 15 assessed on a case by case basis, using a credit rating agency where appropriate

The following table sets out details of those assets which bear credit nsk

2009 2008
£m £m

At farr value through income
Liquidity funds classed as equity 3,666 3 31566
Debt securittes 1,813 7 2,018 9
Denvative financial instruments 1731 198 8

At amorlised cost

Loans and receivables 429 856
Remnsurers’ share of insurance contract liabihties 980 1001
Cash and cash equivalents 572 1051
Total assets bearing credit risk 58512 5.665 1
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The tables below analyse financial assets subject to credit risk using Standard & Poor’s rating or equivalent  Limits are not
apphied to investments 1n funds falling under the UCITS Directive

As at 31 December 2009

BBB or

Total AAA AA A lower Not rated

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Liquidity funds classed as equity 3,666 3 36663 - - - -

Debt securiites 1,813 7 1,755 8 10 569 - -

Derivative financial instruments 173 1 158 4 05 142 - -

Reinsurers’ share of insurance 98 0 980 - - -
contract liabilities

Loans and receivables 4246 920 04 - 335

Cash and cash equivalents 572 171 198 203 - -

Total 5,8512 5,704 6 213 918 - 335

Assets classified as “not rated” in the above tables are not rated by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent rating agency

As at 31 December 2008

BBB or

Total AAA AA A lower Not rated

£m £m £m £m fm £m

Liquidity funds classed as equuty 3,156 6 3,156 6 - - - -

Debt securities 2,018%9 1,745 4 717 2018 - -

Derivative financial instruments 1988 - - 198 8 - -
Rewnsurers” share of insurance

contract habilities 1001 ) (19 3} nv6 - )

Loans and receivables 856 - - 352 - 504

Cash and cash equivalents 1051 . 334 717 - -

Total 5,665 1 4,902 0 85.6 627.1 - 50.4

Assets classified as “not rated” in the above tables are not rated by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent rating agency

Included 1n the loans and receivables balance above 15 £0m (2008 £0m) n respect of assets that were past due but not imparred
at the reporting date  There were no impaired assets at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008 Wo terms in respect of
financial assets had been renegotiated at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008
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(1) Concentration risk

Credit concentration risk relates 1o the inadequate diversification of credit nsk This risk 15 managed through comphance with
the fund mandates in place for those funds As previously stated, defaults on umit-linked funds would be matched by an
offsetting reduction 1n habilities to unit-hinked policyholders

Each mandate sets out the permitted asset types within each fund with a minimum and maximum permitted holding by asset
type, and within each assel type there are further restrictions set down by credit rating of the assets held Counterparty limuts
are set out within those by asset types according to the credit rating of the instruments held — these vary by mandate
according io the stated fund objective

The portfolio of mandates 1s reviewed at least annually and within the non-profit and shareholder funds 1s designed to set
counterparty risk thresholds that are lower than those required for FSA reporting

The only assets permitted to be held with no lumit on concentration nisk 1n any fund mandate are UK Treasury securities
These are unhmuted, with holdings at 31 December 2009 beng £1,484 9m (2008 £1,473 4m), of which £1,484 9m
{2008 £1,458 9m) was held in unit-linked funds

The largest exposures 1o which counterparty limits are applied in the fund mandates are to the range of Insight hquidity
funds These AAA rated funds have UCITS status and a diverse portfolio of mvestments Exposure across these hquidity
funds totalled £2,714 7m (2008 £3,207 3m), of which £1,836 9m (2008 £2,816 9m) was held in unit-inked funds

Other than UK Treasury secunties and hgudity fund investments, the Company did net have any significant concentration of
credit nsk with a single counterparty or group of counterparties where limits applied at 31 December 2009 or 31 December
2008 The next largest exposure at 31 December 2009, without taking into account collateral held or other credit
enhancements, was to HBOS Investment Fund Managers Limited Cautious Managed OEIC totalling £2.156 7m
{2008 HBOS Investment Fund Managers Limited Cauttous Managed OEIC totalhng £1,637 Om) and this represented 16%
of the investments held (2008 15%) £2,156 7m of the exposure to HBOS Investment Fund Managers Limited Cautious
Managed OEIC was held in the umit-hinked funds (2008 £1,637 Om)

The Company maintains stnct control hmits on the derivative positions held by each fund as set out in the Insurance Division
Derivatives Policy

(n) Collateral management

Collateral mn respect of OTC derivatives

The requirement for collaterahisation, including the levels at which collaterat 1s required and the types of asset that are
deemed to be acceptable collateral, are set out 1n a Credit Support Annex (“CSA™) A CSA 13 a bilateral legal agreement
which, once signed, forms part of the International Swaps and Denvatives Associaion (“ISDA™) agreement between the
Company and the counterparty

A CSA must be completed for OTC denvatives as part of the contracts for such transactions The CSA will require
collateralisation where any net exposure to a counterparty exceeds the OTC counterparty limit, which must be established n
accordance with the Insurance Division's Risk Policy The aggregate uncollateralised exposure to any one counterparty must
not exceed hmits specified in the Insurance Division’s Denivatives Policy Where denivative counterparties are related, the
aggregate net exposure 15 constdered for the purposes of applying these Limits

Collateralisation 15 the pledging or receiving of assets as a guarantee agamnst the fulfilment of a future obhgation, normally
through a cash transfer or asset delivery

The aggregate exposure, net of any collateralisauon, to any one counterparty, across all funds and transactions, should not
exceed £225m

Collateral 1s pledged or received 1n cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2009, no assets (2008 ml) had been pledged in accordance with the terms of the relevant CSAs in respect of
OTC denvative contracts
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The policy of the Company 1s net to repledge assets In the event of default, assets received as collateral are sold Collateral
with a fair value of £mil (2008 £ml) was sold durning the year At 31 December 2009, assets with a fair value of £144 1m
(2008 £154 Tm) were available to the Company 10 sell in the absence of default by the counterparty None of these assets
were past due or impaired at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008

Collateral held in respect of OTC derivatives at 31 December 2009 had a fair value of £144 Im (2008 £154 7m)

All collateral held relates to fully performing assets

Collateral in respect of securities lending

The Company enters mto securities lending transactions The Insurance Duvision's Investment Control Commitiee 1s
responsible for setting the parameters of secunities lending and therefore changes 1o these parameters The accepted collateral
can include cash, equities, certain bonds and money market instruments On a daily basis, the fair value of collateral 15
compared to the fair value of stock on loan The value of collateral must always exceed the value of stock on loan

Secunties lending 15 permitted 1n accordance with the Insurance Division's Credit Risk Policy on securities lending  All
secunities lending takes place on an open/call basis, enabling the loan to be recalled at any time within the standard settiement
terms of the market concerned

The pohcy requires all lending to be undertaken via a partial indemmified programme (where the operator of the programme
provides an indemmification against borrower and collateral default) [Placeholder Investment Governance 1s under review so
this may be subject to change) The partial programme does not cover the re-investment of outright cash and therefore the
policy spectfies that the Insurance Division's Investment Control Committee will set counterparty hmits for the re-investment
of such balances

Additionally, the Insurance Division's Investment Control Commuttee will set lumits on the maximum amount of any security
that may be lent and the markets in which lending can take place

The pohicy requires acceptable collateral to be piedged to at least the value of securities lent and sets specific parameters over
what qualifies as acceptable collateral

There were no collateral defaults in respect of securities lending during the year ended 31 December 2009 which required a
call to be made on collateral During 2008 possession was taken of collateral held on securities lending transactions with
Lehman Brothers, following the collapse of that company The fair value of the collateral obtaned totalled £4m, and
principally comprised of debt and equity instruments as permiutted under the lending agreement govermng the transactions at
the time There was no impact on profit before tax relating to the recovery

(4) Financial soundness risk

Financial soundness risk covers the nisk of financial failure, reputational loss or loss of earnings and/or value anising from a
lack of Liqumdity, funding or capital and/or the inappropnate recording, reporting or disclosure of financial, taxation and
regulatory information

(1) Financial and prudential regulatory reporting, tax and disclosure risks

The Company 1s exposed to the risk that policies and procedures are not sufficient to maintain adequate books and records to
support statutory, regulatory and tax reporting and to prevent and detect financial reporting fraud

The Company has developed procedures to ensure that compliance with both current and potential future requirements are
understood and that policies are aligned 10 1ts nsk appetite  The Company maintains a system of internal controls,
consisiently apphed, providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded and undertaken n accordance with
delegated authorities that permit the preparation and disclosure of financial statements (including consolidated financial
statements), regulatory reporting and tax returns in accordance with IFRSs, statutory and regulatory requirements

The Company undertakes a programme of work designed to support an annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporting, to identify tax habilities and to assess emerging legislation and regulation
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{(n} Liqumdity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its financial commitments as they
fall due, or can secure them only at an excessive cost Liquidity risk may result from ether the inabihity to sell financial assets
quickly at their fair values, or from an insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than expected, or from the nability
to generate cash inflows as anticipated

Liquudity nsk has been analysed as ansing from payments to pohicyhelders (including those where payment is at the
discretion of the policyholder) and non policyholder related activity (such as investment purchases and the payment of
sharcholder expenses)

Liquidity nisk 1 respect of each of the major product areas is primartly mitigated as follows

Non-profit contracts

For umt-finked products, portfolhos are invested in accordance with umit fund mandates Deferral clauses are included n
pohcyholder contracts to give ime, when necessary, to realise linked assets without being a forced seller As at 31 December
2009, there are no funds under management subject to deferral

A manager’s box 15 also held to mitigate the nsk of normal disinvestments in the course of business A disinvesting
pohcyholder receives the closing price on the date of surrender This price can be affected by the level of dismvestment
thereby deferring the liquidity nsk to the pelicyholder

For non hnked products, investments are mostly held in gilts with minimal iqudity risk  Investments are arranged to
mimmse the possibility of being a distressed selier whilst at the same time mvesting to meet policyholder obligations. This 1s
achieved by anticipating pohcyhelder behaviour and sales of underlying assets wathin funds

Shareholder funds

For shareholder funds, liqusdity risk 1s managed 1n line with the Lloyds Banking Group Funding and Liqudity Risk Pohcy

The following tables indicate the uming of the contractual cashflows ansing from the Company’s financial habiliues, as
required by IFRS 7 Liquidaty risk in respect of insurance contract habilities has been analysed based on the expected pattern
of matunities as permitted by IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts  rather by contractual matunity A matunty analysis of investment
contracts based on expected contract matunties is also given as 1t 1s considered that this analysis provides additional useful
information 1n respect of the hquidity risk relating to contracts wnitten by the Company

As at 31 December 2009

Liabilities Carrying Contractual cashflows (undiscounted)

amount* Nostated Lessthan1 1-3 months 3-12 1-5 years More than

matunity month months 5 years
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Investment
contract habtlities 87 B 87 T i . )
Derivative
financial 201 - - 37 15 149 -
instruments
?‘h“ financial 361 1 . 2164 14 163 1270 -
1abihties
Total 3899 - 2251 51 178 141 9 -

*The carrying amount 18 presented on a discounted basis  In accordance with IFRS 7, the contractuat cashftows are presented
on an undiscounted basis
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As at 31 December 2008

Liabilities Carrying Contractual cashflows (undiscounted)
amount* No stated Less than 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 years More than
maturity month months months 5 years
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment
contract habihties 99 ) 29 i} B B )
Derivative
financial 587 - 111 338 08 130 -
mstruments
Other financial 3187 . 1816 21 40 1310 -
liabilities
Total 3873 - 2026 359 48 1440 -

*The carrying amount 1s presented on a discounted basis  In accordance with [FRS 7, the contractual cashflows are presented
on an undiscounted basis

The contractual cashflow analysis set out above has been based on the earliest possible contractual date, regardless of the
surrender penalties that might apply and has not been adjusted to take account of such penalties

An analysis of insurance and investment contract habilities by expected contract matunty, on a discounted basis, 15 shown
below

As at 31 December 2009

Maturity Analysis for insurance and Total Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 More
mmvestment contract habihties £m 1 month months months years than 5
£m £m £m £m years
£m
Insurance contract hiabihtics 12,650 7 436 5 748 8 1,144 3 3,364 5 6,996 6
Investment contract liabilities 87 05 10 42 30 -

As at 31 December 2008

Maturity Analysis for insurance and Total Less 1-3 3-12 1-5 More
mmvestment contract habilities £fm than months months years than 5
1 month £m f£fm £m years
£m £m
Insurance contract habilities 10,7213 823 1616 749 1 3,266 2 6,462 1
Investment contract habilities 99 02 04 27 66 -

{m) Capatal nisk

Captal nisk 1s defined as the risk that
e  the Company has msufficient capital to meet its regulatory capital requirements,

* the Company has mnsufficient capital to provide a stable resource to absorb all losses up to a confidence level defined in
the nisk appetite,

¢  the Company loses reputational status by having capital that 1s regarded as nappropniate, either in quanuty, type or
distribution, and/or

®  the capnal siructure 15 inefficient

The FSA specifies the mmimum amount of capital that must be held by the Company 1n addition 1o their insurance habilities
Under the FSA rules, the company must hold assets in excess of the higher of

(1) the Pillar 1 amount, which 1s calculated by applying fixed percentages to premiums and claims, and
(n) the Pillar 2 amount, which 1s derived from an economic capital assessment undertaken by each regulated company,
which 15 reviewed by the FSA

The mimimum required capital must be maintamned at all times throughout the year The fair value surplus 15 regutarly
estimated 1 order to ensure that capital maintenance requirements are bemng met
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The Company’s objectives when managing capital are

- to comply with the insurance capital requirements set out by the FSA in the UK,

- to have sufficient further capital to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a gomng concern so that 1t can continue
to provide returns for the sharcholder and benefits for other stakeholders,

- when capital 15 needed, to require an adequate return to the shareholder by pricing insurance and nvestment contracts
according to the level of nisk associated with the business wntten

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to reflect changes 1in economzc conditions and the risk
charactenistics of the underlying assets In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to the shareholder, return capital to the shareholder, 1ssue new shares or sell assets

The Company’s capital comprises all components of equity, movements in which are set out in the statement of changes in
equity

The table below sets out the regulatory capital and the required capital held at 31 December 1n each year on a Pillar 1 basis
The current year information 1s, 1n general, an esimate that will be updated once the FSA returns for the year are finalised

2009 2008

£m £m

Regulatory capital held 5170 428 1
Regulatory capital required 2493 2690

All mimmum regulatory requirements were met during the year

(d} Legal and regulatory risks

The Company also faces a number of legal and regulatory nisks, reflecting the volume and pace of change within the UK
This impacts the Company both operationally, in terms of costs of compliance and uncertainty about regulatory expectations,
and strategically, through pressure on key earnings streams The latter could potenually result 1n major changes to business
and pricing models, particularly in the UK retaill market Business planning processes continue to reflect change to the
regulatory environment

Regulators are nterested in protecting the nights of the policyholders and ensunng that the Company 1s satisfactonly
managing affairs for the benefit of the policyholders Regulators are also keen to ensure that the Company mamtains
approprate solvency levels to meet unforeseen habilities anising from reasonably foreseeable economic shocks or natural
disasters  As such, the Company 1s subject to regulatory requirements which prescribe and impose certain restrictive
provisions
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27 Related party transactions
(a) Ulumate parent and shareholding
The Company’s immecdhate parent undertaking 15 Halifax Life Limited, a company registered in the United Kingdom
The Company’s ulumate parent company and ultimate controlling party 1s Lloyds Banking Group plc, which 1s also the

parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which group accounts are drawn up and of which the Company 15
a member Copies of the Lloyds Banking Group plc financial statements in which the Company 1s consolidated can be

obtained from the Group Secretary’s Department, Lloyds Banking Group plc, 25 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7HN

(b) Transactions and balances with related parties

Transactions between the Company and other companies in the Llovds Banking Group

The Company has entered nte the following transactions with other related parties during the year and holds the following

balances with other related parties at the end of the year

Counterparty Transaction type Retationship 2009 2008
£m £m
HBOS plc Insurance business balance Fellow group undertaking (170} 18 4
Insurance business transactions Fellow group underiaking 1,2583 3708
Halifax Life Lid Reassurance business balance Parent undertaking 13 55
Reassurance business transactions  Parent undertaking 1854 4803
HBOS Financial Services Ltd  Expense Recharge balance Fellow group undertaking B0 (125)
Expense Recharge transactions Fellow group undertaking 439 (567
Bank of Scottand plc Bank account balances Fellow group undertaking 248 323
Bank account transactions Fellow group undertaking (7 5) 133
Bank of Scotland plc Insurance business balance Fellow group undertaking 41) 09
Insurance business transactions Fellow group undertaking 2779 2777
Halitax Insurance Ireland Lid  Insurance business balance Fellow group undertaking 53 62
Insurance business transactions Fellow group undertaking 69 1] 558
Halifax General Insurance Expense Recharge balance Fellow group undertaking - 10
Services Lid
Expense Recharge transactions Fellow group undertaking 10y 07
Clerical Medical Investment Insurance business balance Fellow group undertaking - -
Fund Managers Ltd
Insurance business transactions Fellow group undertaking 01 01
Birmingham Midshires Insurance business balances Fellow group undertaking - o
Insurance business transactions Fellow group undertaking (05) 1)
Capital Bank Profit commuission balance Fellow group undertaking 24 12y
Profit commussion transactions Fellow group undertaking 10 13
St Andrews Group Plc Expense Recharge balance Fellow group undertaking (408 (204)
Expense Recharge transactions Fellow group undertaking (170) (148}
HBOS investment Fund Investment Management Fees Fellow group undertaking (1% G 4)
Managers Ltd balance
Investment Management Fee Fellow group undertaking (30) (47
transaclions
Insight Investment Management Investment Management Fees Fellow group undertaking - (10)
Lid balance
Investment Management Fee Fellow group undertaking (6 9) @35
transactions
Scottish Widows Investment Investment Management Fees Fellow gioup undertaking (07} -
Partnership Lid balance
Investment Management Fee Fellow group undertaking o7 -
transactions
Invisia Real Estate Investment  Investment Management Fees Fellow group undertaking - -
balance
Investment Management Fee Fellow group undertaking 0 4) -
transactions
AA Personal Finance Ltd Profit commission balance Fellow group undertaking 27 -
Profit commussion transactions Fellow group undertaking 27 -
Membership Services Finance  Profit commussion balance Fellow group undertaking on -

Lid

Profit commission transactions

Fellow group undertaking
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Counterparty Transaction type Relationship 2009 2008
£m £m
Lioyds Banking Group plc investment balance Ulumate parent 2536 -
undertaking
Investment Transactions Ulumate parent 2519 -
undertaking
AA Fmancial Services Ltd Profit Comnussion balance Fellow group undertaking (0 4) -
Profit Commission transactions Fellow group undertaking, (04) -
Britanma Personal Lending Ltd Profit Commussion balance Fellow group undertaking ©1n -
Profit Commission transactions Fellow group undertaking ©o1n -
Home Shopping Personal Profit Commussion balance Fellow group undertaking ©1n -
Finance Ltd
Profit Commussion transactions Fellow group undertaking on -
HBOS Treasury Services Ltd ~ Derivative instrument balance Fellow group undertaking 45 -
Derivative instrument transactions  Fellow group undertaking 45 -

Transactions between the Company and key management

Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company which, for the Company, are the Directors

Transactions between the key management personnel of the Company and parues related to them as defined by 1AS 24 are as
follows

The emoluments of Directors providing services to the Company are

2009 2008
£ £
Total emoluments 146,779 175,120
Penston contributions and entitlements 15,468 22,988
Other long-term benefits 14,482 1,720
Termination benefits - -
Share-based Payments - 21,219

Retirement benefits are accruing to 2 Directors (2008 3) under a defined benefit scheme

Duirectors sit on several boards and thenr benefits are allocated to a company depending on the proportion of their time that
they spend as a director of that company

Lafe assurance contracts

Number of key £000
management
personnel
Valwation as at 1 January 2009 or date of appointment, 1if later 1 170
Premiums patd/amounts invested during the year - -
Other movements including investment returns 1 amn
Balance upon resignation of office 1 153

Total sum insured/value of investment at 31 December 2009

Other transactions
HM Treasury

On 13 January 2009, HM Treasury subscribed for 2,597 million shares 1n Lloyds Banking Group plc, the Company's ultimate
parent company On 16 January 2009, Lloyds Banking Group acquired HBOS plc n an all share acquisition which, together
with the shares subscnibed for on 13 January 2009, gave HM Treasury a 43 38 per cent interest in Lloyds Banking Group’s
ordinary share capital and, consequently, HM Treasury became a related party of the Company frem this date
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There were no material transactions between the Company and HM Treasury during the period between 13 January 2009 and
31 December 2009 that were not made in the ordinary course of business or that are unusual 1 their nature or conditions In
addition, the Company have entered into transactions with HM Treasury on an arm's length basis mcluding, but not
exclusively in relation to, the payment of corporation tax, employment tax, and value added tax Owing to the volume and
diversity, such transactions are not disclosed

28 Stocklending

The aggregate value of secunities on loan by the Company 1sml {2008 £869 9m} Secunties on loan are included 1n
investments at fatr value through income and no account 1s taken of collateral held The aggregate value of collateral held s
ml (2008 £966 1m) This collateral was :n the form of high quahty bonds and cash. Further detail in respect of collaterat 15
provided tn note 26

29 Standards and interpretations effective in 2009
The following standards, amendments to and 1nterpretations of published standards which have the poteniial to impact on the

Company’s operations have been 1ssued and are mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2009 Their relevance to the
Company’s operations 1s assessed below

Amendment to 1AS 23 “Berrowing Costs” This standard requires that borrowing costs that are directly attnbutable 1o the
acquisition, constructicn or production of a qualifying asset should form part of the cost of that asset Other borrowing costs
should be recogmsed as an expense  The amendment removes the previously allowable alternative treatment of immediately
recognising as an expense borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or
sale Adoption of this standard has had no impact on the financial results or position of the Company as the alternative
treatment previously allowed under IAS 23 was not adopted

» Amendment to IAS | “Presentation of Financial Statements” This standard sets out overall requirements for the presentation
of financial statements, guidelines for their structure and mimimum requirements for their content  All changes in equity 1in
respect of transactions with shareholders in their capacity as sharcholders are required to be presented separately from
changes in equity anising from transactions with other parties ( ‘non-owner™), in a statement of changes in equity  All non-
owner changes i equity (comprehensive income) are required to be presented i one statement of comprehensive income or
In two statements (an income statement and a statement of comprehensive income) The changes required on adoption of this
standard relate only to presentation and disclosure and have therefore had no overall impact on the financial results or
position of the Company other than to rename the income statement as the statement of comprehensive mcome and the cash
flow statement as the statement of cash flows IAS I has been further amended by an amendment to IAS 32, details of which
are set out 1n later in this section

» Amendments to IAS | “Presentation of Financial Statements” and 1AS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentation” The
amendments are relevant to entities that have issued financial nstruments that are (1) puttable financial instruments
(mnstruments which allow the holder to require the issuer 10 redeem the instruments for cash), or (1) instruments, or
components of instruments, that impose on the entity an obtigation to deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net
assets of the entity only on hiquidathon Under the revised IAS 32, subject 10 extensive detailed criteria bemg met, such
mstruments will be classified as equity whereas, prior to these amendments, they would have been classified as financtal
Labihities  The amendments will require reclassifications from or to equity when the specified critena are no longer met, or
when they are subsequently met IAS 1 has been amended to require disctosure of (1) summary quantitative data about the
amount classified as equity, (11) the entity’s objectives, policies and processes for redeeming the nstruments, and (in) the
expected cash outflow on redemption and how ttus has been calculated m respect of a puttable financial instrument which has
been classified within equity These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the LU but adoption would have had no
impact on the financial results or positron of the Company

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2008 (majonty of changes effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009} — this 1s the first standard published under the IASBs annual improvements process,
which 1s intended to deal with non-urgent, mmor amendments to standards The standard includes 35 amendments and 15
sphit mnto two parts (1) amendments that result 1n accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purposes,
and (1) amendments that are terminology or editorial changes only Adopuon of this standard has had only a minor impact
on some of the disclosures given in the Company financial staternents

Amendments to 1AS 39 ‘ Financial Instruments Recognitior and Measurement” and IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of embedded
denvatives’ This amendment clanfies the consequences if the fair value of an embedded denvative that would have to be
separated from its host contract cannot be measured reliably These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU but
adoption of these amendments would have had no impact on the financial results or position of the Company

¢ Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures” The amendments introduce enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurement and liqudity sk For fair value measurements, a three level hierarchy has been introduced A financial
mstrument should be classified mnto one of these levels m 1ts entirety, with the appropriate level in the hierarchy being
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determined on the basis of the lowest level mput that 15 “sigmficant” to the fair value measurement Adoption of these
amendments has resulted n additional quantitative disclosure being provided 1n the relevant notes The amendments 1n
respect of Liquidity nisk clanfy the scope of 1tems to be included in the matunty analyses required by IFRS 7 by changing the
defimition of hguidity nisk to include only financial habilities that are settled by dehivering cash or another financial
mstrument The amendments also clanify that a hybrid contract that 1s a financial hability should not be separated inte a host
contract and related embedded derivative for the purpose of the maturity analysis  Adoption of these amendments has had no
impact on the liquidity risk disclosures provided by the Company

Standards and interpretations n 1ssue but not adopted early

The foilowing standards, amendments to and interpretations of published standards have been 1ssued and will be refevant to
the Company’s operations but have not been adopted early by the Company

Amendment to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement” (effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after I July 2009) This amendment clanfies how the principles that determine whether a hedged risk or portion of
cash flows 1s ehigible for hedge designation should be apphed in particular situations  Adoption of this amendment will have
no unpact on the financial results or position of the Company This amendment has not vet been endorsed by the EU

Improvements to International Fnancial Reporing Standards 2009 (majonty of changes effectuve for accounting periods
beginming on or after | January 2010) This 1s the second standard published under the IASBs annual improvements process,
which s intended to deal with non-urgent, minor amendments to standards The standard includes amendments to 12
standards Adoption of this standard will have no impact on the financial results, financial position or disclosures given in
the Company financial statements Thus standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU

Amendment to IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (effective for accounting pertods beginning on or after 1 January 2011)
This revised standard simphfies the disclosure requirements for entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by a government and clanfies the definition of a related party A partial exemption 15 provided from the
disclosure requirements of 1AS 24 for govermnment-related entities, meaning that there 1s no need to disclose related party
transactions and outstanding balances (including commitments) with (1) a government that has control, joint control or
significant influence over the reporting entity and (u1) an other entity that 15 a refated party because the same government has
control, joint control or significant influence over both the reporting entity and the related entity The amendment also
simplifies the defimtion of a related party, clanfies s intended meaming and ehiminates a number of nconsistencies
Adopuion of this amendment wilt have no impact on the financial results, financial position or disclosures given 1 the
Company financial statements This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU

IFRS @ “Financial Instruments Part 1 Classification and Measurement” (effective for accounting peniods beginnmg on or
after 1 January 2013) IFRS 9 replaces those parts of IAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of financial
assets Under IFRS 9, only two measurement categories are available being fair value through profit or loss and amortised
cost Previously, categones of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity were also available The decision on classification s
made at imtial recognition and will depend on an entity’s business model for managing 1ts financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial instraments  An instrument 15 subsequently measured at amortised cost
only 1f 1t 15 a debt instrument and (1) the objective of the entity’s business model 15 to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and (11) the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only payments of principal and nterest Al other debt
mnstruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss  All equity instruments are 1o be subsequently measured at
fair value Gains and losses in respect of equity mstruments held for trading will be recogmsed through the mcome
stalement For other equity instruments, it will be possible to make an 1rrevocable election at 1mitial recogmtion to recogmse
reahised and unreahsed fair value gams and losses directly 1n equity through the statement of comprehensive mcome 1 will
not be possible to recycle gains and losses In respect of such investments to the income statement although dividend income
associated with such instruments will be recognised in the income statement rather than beng taken directly to equity
Adoption of this standard, which has not yet been endorsed by the EU, 15 not expected to have any impact on the financtal
results or position of the Company
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Restatement of comparatives

The following table sets out the balance sheets as at 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2008 and the income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2008 as presented in the 2008 financial statements of the Company with reclassifications made to
present these statements on a basis consistent with the presentation practices adopted by Lioyds Banking Group plc

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

As previously  Balance sheet Restated
presented reclassifi-
cations
£m £m £m
ASSETS
Deferred tax asset (Note 3) 2317 204 1 435 8
Deferred costs 2759 - 2759
Investment properties 106 1 - 106 1
Investment in Group undertakings and 1,622 6 (1,622 6) -
participating interests (Note 1)
Rensurers' share of insurance contract liabilities 100 1 - 100 1
Prepayments (Note 2) 236 (23 6) -
Current tax receivable 150 - 190
Financial assets
Denvative financial instruments 1988 - 198 8
Loans and receivables (Note 2) 856 856
Insurance receivables (Note 2) 139 (139 -
Investments a1 FV through income (Notes 1 - 10,953 7 10,953 7
and 4)
Equity investments (Note 4) 40571 (4057 1) -
Debt investments {Notc 4) 5,1582 (5,158 2) -
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) 663 388 105 1
Other assets (Note 2) 48 1 481 -
Total assets 11,921 4 3587 12,280 1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital & reserves attributable to Company’s
equity holders
Issued share capital (360 0) - (360 0)
Retained earmings (578 9) - (578 9)
Total equity (938 9) - (938 9)
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts habilihes (10,721 3) - (10,721 3)
Deferred tax liability (Note 3) - {204 1) (204 1)
Current tax payable (24 4) - {24 8)
Financial habilines
Dernivative liabilities (587) - (587
Invesiment contracts habilines {9 9) - 29
Other insurance financial liabilities (Note 6) (103 6) 1056 -
Accruals and deferred income “@1) - 1)
Other liabihities (Notes 5 and 6) (58 5) {260 2) 3187
Total habihities {10,982 5) (3587 (11,341 2)
Total lrabihities and equity {11,921 4) (3587 (12,280 1)
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 1 JANUARY 2008

The sigmficant balance sheet reclassifications (none of which require re-measurement of an asset or hability) are in relation

to

As previously  Balance sheet Restated
presented reclassifi-
cations
£m £m £m
ASSETS
Deferred tax asset (Note 3) - 1223 1223
Deferred costs 2842 - 2842
Investment propertics i295 - 1295
Investment in Group undertakings and 1,957 3 (1,957 3) -
participating interests (Note 1)
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract habilities 258 8 - 2588
Prepayments (Note 2) 603 (60 3) -
Current tax receivable - - -
Financial assets
Dernivative financial instruments 68 8 - 638
Loans and receivables (Note 2) 1508 1508
Insurance recervables (Note 2) 38 (3 8) -
Investments at FV through income (Notes 1 14,402 1 14,402 1
and 4)
Equity investments (Note 4) 7,050 0 {7,050 0) -
Debt investments (Note 4) 5394 8 (5,394 8) -
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) 394 26 4 858
Other assets (Neote 2) 867 (86 7) -
Total assets 15.353 6 148 7 15,502 3
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital & reserves attributable to Company’s
equity holders
Issued share capital (360 0) - (360 )
Retained earnings (238 8) - (238 8)
Total equity (598 8) - (598 8)
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts habilities (11,995 0) - (11,995 0)
Deferred tax hability (Note 3) (96 2) (122 3) (218 5)
Current tax payable (197 (197)
Financial habilities -
Denivative habilities 38 - 38
Investment contracts liabilities (2,447 6) - (2,447 6)
Other insurance financial habilities (Note 6) (130 8) 130 8 -
Accruals and deferred income 46) (4 6)
Other habilities {Notes 5 and 6) 57 1) (1572) (214 3)
Totzal habilittes (14,754 8) (1487 (14 503 5)
Total habilhities and eqnty (15,353 6) (148 7) (15,502 3)

Note 1~ The reclassification of Investrnents in subsidianes as Investments at fair value through income
Note 2 — The reclassification of accrued interest, insurance recetvables and other recetvables to loans and receivables
Note 3 — The reclassification of tax balances to show gross assets and habihitics

Note 4 — The reclassificatton of Debt and Equity instruments to Investments at FV through mcome on the face of the batance

sheet Within thus balance there 15 also the reclassification of £3,255m of UCITS OEIC funds from debt to equity
Note 3 — The reclassification of the liability associated with receiving collateral assets

Note 6 — Other insurance financial liabihities re-classed to Other liabihities
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

As previously  Balance sheet Restated
presented reclassifi-
cations
£m £m £m
Revenue
Gross premiums written (Note 1) 22857 (4 6) 2,2811
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 206 - 206
Premiums written net of remsurance 23063 (46) 23017
Fee and commusston income (Note 1) 35 46 81
Investment income 5123 - 5123
Net realised losses on assets and habihities at fair value though 2312) - (2312)
income
Net fair value gams/(losses) on assets and habihities at fair value (1,969 0) - (1,965 0)
through mncome
Total revenue 6219 - 6219
Expenses
Gross claims and benefits paid 20787 - 20787
Claims recoveries from remnsurers (724) - (72 4)
2,006 3 - 2,0063
Change m insurance contract habilities (1,273 7) - (1,273 7)
Change mn nvestment contract hiabilities (5297 - 3297
Change 1n reinsurers’ share of iabilities 1587 - 1587
(1.644 7} - (1.644 7)
Operating expenses (Notes 2 and 3) - 1953 1953
Other operating and administration expenses {(Note 3) 973 973) -
Fee and commussion expenses {Note 3) 136 8 (136 8) -
Expenses for asset management services recewved (Note 2) - 388 388
Finance costs 438 - 48
2389 - 2389
Total expenses 600 5 - 600 5
Profit before tax 214 - 214
Taxation {charge)/credit 3187 - 3187
Profit for the year 3401 3401

Note 1 — Fhe reclassification of deferred income reserve movement from Premiums to Fee and Commussion Income

Note 2 ~ The reclassification of Investment Management Fees from Other operating and admimistration expenses to Expenses
for asset management services received

Note 3 — The reciassification of Other operating and administration expenses and Fee and commission expenses to Operating
Expenses
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